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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year").

During the Year, the production and sales of the pharmaceutical industry in
China continued to maintain growth, albeit at a slower pace. At the same
time, the reform of pharmaceutical and hygiene systems continued to extend
and deepen, while new mode of pharmaceutical circulation were gradually
developed, these coupled with the implementation of new versions of GMP
and GSP enabled the pharmaceutical industry to remain in a stage of stable
growth. In this stage we also saw rapid diversification, adjustment and
innovation in the industry. Under the influence of external factors such as
the increase of consumers demand and widening of the medical insurance
coverage, the size of the pharmaceutical market maintained a good growth
momentum. However, being impacted by the lowering of average price
due to the bidding regime, strict control over medical insurance expenses
by the government and innovation of pharmaceutical circulation channels,
the profit margin of the pharmaceutical industry was affected while costs
and expenses were on a rising trend. Therefore, in the Year and the coming
years, the industry was and will be full of challenges as well as opportunities.
The Group has to constantly monitor and consider new developments of
the industry and the guiding direction of national policies, so as to align
with the policy guidance and industry development as well as enhancing its
competitiveness.

During the Year, the Group continuously strengthened and developed
its business of various drugs including herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, mitigating the impact of bidding delay
and new national policies and seeking to recover the growth trend of the
pharmaceutical production business. At the same time, also in accordance
with industry development, the purchase and sales of medicines and
healthcare food product business continued to expand sales network and
products and tried innovative marketing models to grow business and
increase profit contribution rapidly. In order to facilitate the development
of the Group’s businesses which have advantages, some research and
development businesses were discontinued during the Year.
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In 2016, the state will drive innovation and upgrade of the pharmaceutical
industry, and determine initiatives to further promote the development
of traditional Chinese medicine, giving full play to the advantages of
traditional medicine to benefit the people. The pharmaceutical industry
should focus on innovation, quality enhancement, industrial integration and
expansion of circulation. The Group will leverage on the opportunities in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry brought by the national policies, as
well as strive for eliminating the impact of unfavourable conditions, so as
to ensure continuous growth of the current production of pharmaceuticals
and healthcare products and circulation business. In addition, based on the
guiding direction of policies and the Group’s own condition, it will focus
on areas such as expanding circulation and the development of anti-tumor
drugs and herbal medicines, and continue to maintain strict requirements
over drug quality to secure its advantages in the market competition.
Furthermore, the Group will step up its efforts on marketing and promoting
key products already launched, and enhance the contribution to the turnover
of the Group from the key products and strengthen the core competitiveness
of the Group.

The Board believes that the business of the Group is developing well and
is confident about the business prospects of the Group. On behalf of the
Company and the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
shareholders, business partners and staff for their continuing support and
trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmNE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the development,
production and sales of medicines, the research and development (“R&D")
of modern biological technology, the purchase and sales of medicines and
healthcare food products, and the R&D as well as the industrialization of in-
vitro diagnostic reagents (the “IVD Reagents”).

Manufacturing and Selling of Medicines

Due to the expiry of the last round of drugs tender and the extension in the
new round of drugs tender in Fujian, competitors’ products that did not win
the bidding in the last round of drugs tender could be sold in the idle period
between the two rounds of tender, which led to decrease in sales volume of
some products of the Group. At present, the new round of tender is near the
end and it is expected that the tender result would show a successful bidding
rate of the Company’s subsidiaries similar to that of last year. Therefore,
starting from the implementation date of the new round of tender, the
decrease in sales volume will be reversed. Besides, affected by the state’s
tighter sale channel on narcotic drugs, sales volume of Compound Liquorice
Tablets (#875 HE ) decreased significantly during the Year as compared
with the corresponding period last year. The Group is strengthening the
promotion on such product in order to mitigate the decrease in sales volume.
The Group together with other manufacturers also actively communicate
with relevant state administrative authorities and adjust marketing plans
according to national policy.

For Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil Potassium Tablets (&7 8 /) (the “TGOP
Tablets”), an anti-tumor new drug, the major work carried out during
the Year was its marketing, tender and bidding. As the biddings in most
provinces were later than expected, there was no significant growth in the
sales of TGOP Tablets during the Year. At present, TGOP Tablets have a large
market capacity and a growth trend, as such the Group will increase the
marketing of the TGOP Tablets, expand the regions with successful bidding
and strive to bring a positive impact to the Group's revenue and profitability
as soon as possible.

Due to the above reasons, revenue from manufacturing and selling of
medicines decreased by approximately 10.5% during the Year, as compared
with the corresponding period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The land use rights of two pieces of lands which are situated in Lianjiang
County, Fuzhou, the PRC, have been delivered to the Group during the
first quarter of the Year, and therefore related construction of the new
production base in Lianjiang (the “Lianjiang Production Base”) which
situated on the two pieces of lands was commenced, and is now at the initial
construction stage. The Group has adjusted some design proposals of the
Lianjiang Production Base according to the development of the Group.

Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare
Food Products

During the Year, the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
business continued to maintain its growth. According to the products and
market characteristics, the sale focus of over the counter products which
the Group distributed was on the large and medium-sized chain drugstores,
while the sale strategy for the prescribed drugs was to cooperate with
national professional sales promotion company, resulting in a significant
increase in marketing expenses. Besides, due to the problem with the
pharmaceutical ingredients of Ginkgo Leaves Products ((RAEEM), the
major type of product distributed by the Group, the production and supply
of Ginkgo Leaves Products from such supplier were suspended since the
end of May 2015, which brought a negative effect to the growth of sales
volume of the Group. Ginkgo Leaves Products resumed normal supply at the
end of the third quarter of the Year. Currently, Ginkgo Leaves Products are
gradually resuming normal sales and market share.

At present, the total domestic retail sales of medicines maintains its growth.
At the same time, the number and type of drugs distributed by the Group
increase. Together with a flexible sales policy and an optimized sales team,
the development of the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
business is positive. Currently, the state continues to implement medical
reform and the sales model and channel of medicines are evolving. The
Group is studying, upgrading and supplementing its distribution model
according to the prevailing trend and new characteristics of policies, regions
and industry development. In addition, selling expenses also increased
sharply due to increasingly fiercer competition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE A S o AT

Recombinant Proteins and Polypeptide Drugs
Business and IVD Reagents Business

Since the Group’s investment in R&D and construction of production base
are substantial, competition is intensified and it is expected that more
resources will be required in the next few years for the recombinant proteins
and polypeptide drugs business and the IVD Reagents business while it will
be difficult for such businesses to contribute to Group’s profit in the coming
years, the Group has discontinued the businesses and disposed of related
assets of such businesses in the fourth quarter of the Year and in January
2016 respectively. Subject to completion of the disposals, this will help the
Group to concentrate resources on the development of profitable business
and have positive effect on the Company’s profitability.

Subsequent Events

On 19 January 2016, the Company (as the vendor) and a purchaser entered
into the Equity Transfer Agreement (“Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in Jiangsu
Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
RMB57,800,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal completed on 29 January
2016.

Environment, Society and Governance

The Group has been giving emphasis and taking actions in the aspects of
environment, society and governance, including:

(1) The Group constantly improved production efficiency, conserved
resources and enhanced employees’ awareness of environmental
protection. Regarding production, the output corresponding to
unit carbon emission is increased, the pollution and the emission of
hazardous substance which are in violation of laws and regulations
are banned. Regarding office management, office supplies and energy
consumption are conserved.

(2)  The Group improved the working environment to give play to the
potential of employees. It also conducted various trainings to allow
employees to work in a safe and growing environment. There were no
work-related injuries during the year.

(3) The Group was also committed to social responsibility. It gave back
to the society by direct donation of funds and products. At the same
time, it promoted health information related to disease prevention to
the public.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group will continue to strengthen its contribution in environmental
protection and social responsibility.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately RMB721,346,000
(2014: RMB648,268,000), representing an increase of approximately 11.3%
as compared with the corresponding period last year. For the revenue,
approximately RMB456,429,000 was derived from manufacturing and selling
of medicines, while approximately RMB264,854,000 was derived from the
purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food products. During the
Year, affected by the tender delay in Fujian and the state’s strengthened
narcotic drugs control, the revenue from manufacturing and selling of
medicines has decreased by approximately 10.5%. At the same time, since
the number and types of drugs distributed by the Group had increased,
revenue from the purchase and sales of medicines increased accordingly.
Therefore, the Group’s revenue in general increased.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit was approximately
RMB352,760,000 (2014: RMB276,734,000), representing an increase of
approximately 27.5% as compared with the corresponding period last year.
The increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
and gross profit margin of the Group.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
49% (2014: 43%), representing a slight increase of approximately 6% as
compared with the corresponding period last year. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the new drugs distributed by the Group had
higher gross profit margin.

During the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses were
approximately RMB199,412,000 (2014: RMB116,682,000), representing
an increase of approximately 70.9% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. The significant increase in selling and distribution expenses
was mainly due to the fact that the new prescribed drugs distributed by the
Group had higher marketing expenses.

During the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses were approximately
RMB58,630,000 (2014: RMB53,152,000), representing an increase of
approximately 10.3% as compared with the corresponding period last year.
The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) the application
for the transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board dated 16 February
2015, which led to the corresponding increase in listing expenses and advisor
fees; and (ii) the management department of the Company and a subsidiary
moved to the new office building during the Reporting Period. Therefore,
rental fees increased correspondingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE A S o AT

During the Year, the Group’'s other operating expenses amounted to
approximately RMB50,537,000 for the vyear (2014: RMB45,863,000),
representing an increase of approximately 10.2% as compared with the
corresponding period last year. The slight increase in other operating
expenses was mainly due to the increase in research and development and
loss in handling finished goods.

During the Year, the Company’s financial cost amounted to approximately
RMB10,361,000 (2014: RMB11,078,000), representing a slight decrease of
approximately 6.5%.

Due to the above reasons, the Group's profit after tax decreased
from approximately RMB44,447,000 of last year, to approximately
RMB31,478,000 of this Year. Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased from approximately RMB33,174,000 of last year, to
approximately RMB21,055,000 of this Year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’'s short-term bank borrowings
amounted to RMB110,000,000.

On 22 July 2015, the Company's subsidiary, Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”) was granted a short-
term loan of RMB100,000,000 from Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian
Haixia Bank (“Haixia Bank”), by pledging its land use rights and buildings.
This loan will be repaid on 22 July 2016 and is bearing an annual interest
rate of 4.85%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 23 September 2015, the Company’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Neptunus, was
granted a small business liquidity loan of RMB10,000,000 from Taizhou
Branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. This loan will be paid on 19
July 2016 and the annual interest rate is 5.52%. The guarantee for this
loan was provided by an independent third party guarantee company and
the Company provided a counter-guarantee to the independent third party
guarantee company. On 29 January 2016, the Company completed the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Jiangsu Neptunus, since then Jiangsu
Neptunus ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. On 2 February 2016,
Jiangsu Neptunus repaid the aforesaid loan. The Company also canceled the
counter-guarantee to this loan. In the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, this loan was classified as held for sale.

Shareholder’s Interest-bearing Financial Assistance

As at 31 December 2015, the shareholder’'s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by the Company from Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-
engineering Company Limited (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”) amounted to
approximately RMB34,500,000, which was unsecured and bearing an annual
interest rate at 20% above the benchmark lending rate which was issued by
the People’s Bank of China for the corresponding period. Among of which,
the Company has provided RMB23,000,000 to Neptunus Fuyao by way of
shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance for the construction plan of
Lianjiang Production Base. The Company repaid this shareholder’s interest-
bearing financial assistance in January 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by Neptunus Fuyao from Neptunus Bio-engineering
amounted to approximately RMB40,000,000, which was unsecured and
bearing an annual interest rate at 20% above the benchmark lending rate
which was issued by the People’s Bank of China for the corresponding
period. Such fund was used in the upgrading and improvement work of
Neptunus Fuyao’s certain production lines. Neptunus Fuyao repaid this
shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance in January 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by Jiangsu Neptunus from Neptunus Bio-engineering
amounted to approximately RMB130,000, which was unsecured and bearing
an annual interest rate at 20% above the benchmark lending rate which was
issued by the People’s Bank of China for the corresponding period. Jiangsu
Neptunus repaid this shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance in
January 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E A wm M AT

Shareholder’s Entrusted Loan

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an entrusted arrangement with
a bank. Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company that
it would not demand repayment of the above-mentioned shareholder’s
entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the repayment of such shareholder’s
entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company
and/or its business objectives as set out in the prospectus published by
the Company on 29 August 2005 (the “Prospectus”); (2) each of the
independent non-executive Directors was of the opinion that the repayment
of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the
operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its business
objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-executive
Directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and
had retained profits in the relevant financial year.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB297,440,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB282,494,000, inventories of approximately
RMB155,584,000, pledged bank deposit of approximately RMB3,400,000,
fixed deposit of approximately RMB17,608,000, assets of disposal group of
approximately RMB97,775,000, trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB197,618,000. Current liabilities comprised trade and other payables
of approximately RMB308,636,000, interest-bearing bank borrowings
to be repaid within one year of approximately RMB100,000,000, current
tax of approximately RMB15,694,000, entrusted loan of approximately
RMB9,000,000, liabilities of disposal group of approximately RMB23,170,000
and deferred revenue of approximately RMB539,000. The net current assets
increased approximately by RMB116,265,000 as compared with that of
approximately RMB181,175,000 as at 31 December 2014. The increase
in net current assets was mainly due to the expansion of business and the
smaller investment proportion of fixed assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Pursuant to the loan agreement entered into between Neptunus Fuyao, the
Company’s subsidiary, and Haixia Bank on 24 July 2015, Neptunus Fuyao has
pledged part of the land use rights and building it owned to Haixia Bank.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB.
As such, the foreign currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB37,688,000. The Board believes
that such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits
and bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant contingent liability.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PLANS

During the Year, other than the aforesaid construction of Lianjiang
Production Base carried out by Neptunus Fuyao, the Group did not make any
other major investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E A wm M AT

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 1,426 staff (2014:
1,460).

During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration which
amounted to approximately RMB93,051,000 (2014: approximately
RMB87,553,000). The salaries and fringe benefits of the Group’s employees
remained competitive. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and
determined annually pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the
Group based on the performance of the employees. The Group also provided
various other benefits to its employees.

Compared with 31 December 2014, the slight decrease in the number of
employees of the Group for the Year was mainly due to the disposal of a
subsidiary of the Group in the Year.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group’s business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

EX - EENSAEEREBEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (5K%%), aged 44, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board and the compliance officer of the Company since June 2011. He
obtained a MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang
studied in Goteborg University, Sweden. He is a member of the 10th session
of All-China Youth Federation (FZE2EEFEHA =) and the 10th session
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of Jilin Province, the
deputy chairman of Jilin Youth Federation (F#%& & F A ), the deputy
president of the 8th session of council of Guangdong Province Youth
Entrepreneurs Association (ERESFFLERWHE) and the 5th session
of council of Shenzhen City Youth Entrepreneurs Association (FIITH &
TEZRWE). Mr. Zhang was the general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Company Ltd., the deputy general manager and the chief
marketing officer of Neptunus Bio-engineering and the director of Shenzhen
Neptunus Jiankang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (FII &8 F #ERHS
ZERABPRAF]). He is currently the deputy chairman of the 6th session of the
board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder
of the Company which holds 71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company.

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (4£[M5), aged 55, was appointed as the general
manager of the Company in February 2000 and appointed as an executive
Director in April 2002. Mr. Chai resigned as an executive Director, the
general manager and authorised representative of the Company on 3 March
2016. Mr. Chai is a doctor in chemistry jointly cultivated by Jilin University
of the PRC and Super Molecule Chemical Laboratory of College de France
(CEBIPEERRR) of France, and was a former deputy director and professor of
Chemistry Department of Jilin University of the PRC. Mr. Chai also obtained
an EMBA degree from Euro-China International Business College. Mr. Chai
is currently a visiting professor of Shenzhen University and member of MBA
Education Committee of Shenzhen University. He has extensive experience in
listed medical companies management and international project cooperation
with domestic companies.

Mr. Xu Yan He (%R#F0), aged 59, has been appointed as an executive
Director since June 2011. On 3 March 2016, he was appointed as the
general manager and authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Xu
graduated from Zhejiang Engineering College, the PRC, with a bachelor’s
degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years of experience in pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry in China. He is the standing deputy president of
Fujian Pharmaceutical Profession Association (f@2E EEITHEWE), the
deputy president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Association ({22 & %E2) and
Fujian Medical Insurance Association ({8 E4& EFERBIFE). Mr. Xu is the
managing director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
legal representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu has received
a number of recognition, including Outstanding Entrepreneur in Fujian and
Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

B EERoATRERE

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (#8X2), aged 40, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 3 March 2016. Mr. Zhao graduated from Harbin Normal
University and has been engaged in the sales management of pharmaceutical
products. He joined Neptunus Bio-engineering since 1998 and previously
served as regional sales manager as well as other positions. Mr. Zhao joined
the Group in January 2013 and has been appointed as the general manager
of Neptunus Changjian since May 2013. He has over 10 years of experience
in the marketing management of pharmaceutical products.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (2I5 %), aged 58, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since June 2011. Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai University, the PRC
in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral degree
in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert in corporate
management and development strategies. Mr. Liu was the assistant to
the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department of China
Development Institute in Shenzhen, China (474 BAZSAFERR (R B e R,
and the independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering. He led and
participated in a number of national key research projects and corporate
consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in corporate
management and capital operation. He is currently a director of the 6th
session of the board of directors and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Yu Lin (F#), aged 59, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since February 2005. She was the director of Neptunus Bio-engineering.
Currently she is the vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and
is responsible for its new products research and development. Ms. Yu
graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University of the PRC, and has more than 30
years of experience in biochemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC.

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (R$LA), aged 60, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since January 2014. Mr. Song graduated from Northeast Dianli
University in 1982. He is currently the vice-president of Neptunus Bio-
engineering and was the general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus Health
Food Company Limited. Mr. Song was engaged in the macroscopic and
strategic research regarding energy and the State’s economic development
at the Energy Research Institute under Chinese Academy of Sciences and
was granted the First Class Award of the State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award during such period. Since 1985, he has been engaged in
financial management and was appointed the positions of office supervisor,
deputy head and head at the Branch and Sub-branch of the Bank of China
in Shenzhen Municipality. Since 2002, he started taking tasks regarding
enterprise management and was the deputy general manager at Guangdong
Heng Feng Investment Company Limited (BREZHEFREAF]), deputy
general manager at Shenzhen Heng Feng Real Property Company (Z3II{E 2
EHbE A R]), managing deputy general manager at Heng Feng Hai Yue Hotel
(fE2& 1% 8 J5), and the deputy general manager of the Company.

16 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

WX REE 405 BT —"F=-A=Hi
BZIARTES - BAEEEERBREME K
2, —EREEQEEEETIE - B—LANSF
MABTAEY  SEESHECIRER - #Hit
RZB—=F—ANALRER EZFT—=Fh
AREEESIREELE  FEREHEHEEIE
BETZFNER -

FATES

FEERLE S8 BT —FNAEER
ERIFMTEE - BIRE-NNEFEERDPH
MRAAE  KESEL BESEELIER R
EXEFEERABRBBEER - QEKRAFE
Fb (PR RY)MERBE - LA AELED
R BILVBEYES  CEHNSEBRZHE
EHMAREMEEXARNTIE AFLENDE
EREENEFER REBTENEEEF
REEREH

Tt 595 B-TTRF_ARELRE
RIEPTES - REETBIEYES REEE
EVEIRE  TEEFEMAREERER - T
TEEERPEPIUKRE - EREE(C KRBT
EHREB=TFNER -

RIEAZE 6058 BE-ZE—WF-ARES
ERIHNTES - REE-NN_FEERRIL
BHEER  BESITAVMREER  BEEIHKS
ITRFERMEBRATBLE - RELBEBRE
R B S2EERA AT FER AR REEE
ROZEBEME SR GESHRB TS —
HE®o — N\ LFERKFEEMEETE IR
ERBESTRITAITRTEXTERAEE
BT TRFRE - —TT_FRARSE
CEREETE BEERESGREBERAAER
KR RYIBEFHERNRIBIRLE - ELEH
BIE BRI R AIR R AN BRI o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (57k#), aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Yick holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration, majoring in accounting, from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has more than
30 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment banking
and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the shares of these two companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), and also an independent non-
executive director, the convener of the nomination committee and a member
of the strategy committee and audit committee of Chengdu Xinrong
Environment Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange).

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (%32f%), aged 49, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since August 2005. Mr. Poon
obtained his bachelor’'s degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as an Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master’'s degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. In addition, Mr. Poon has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since March 2016.
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B EERoATRERE

Mr. Yu Bo (F%)), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in August 2013. Mr. Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 January 2016. Mr. Yu graduated from the Harbin Institute
of Technology with a master’'s degree in Engineering Management and
doctorate in Management Science and Engineering. He is currently a
professor and a PhD supervisor of the School of Economics and Management
at the Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Yu is also an executive member
of China Energy Research Society (FFEIEE/RIFFTE), a member of China
National MBA Education Supervisory Committee (2 TEEIEEEE LT
B (MBAHE5EZ 8g), a councilor of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics (FFEIITACEZE) and an executive member of System
Engineering Society of China (FEIZ# T2 ). In addition, Mr. Yu is an
independent non-executive director, member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of Harbin Electric Company Limited (" E/&E &A%
AR F]), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He also serves as an independent director in Mudanjiang
Hengfeng Paper Company Limited (HAHTEZEERMDERAF), a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, where he
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, as well as a member of
the audit committee and the remuneration committee.

Mr. Zhang lian Zhou (E&I5}), aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 21 January 2016. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China Youth University of Political Studies with a B.A. degree
in 1990, from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a LL.B degree in 1992,
and from Boston University with a LL.M degree in 2002. He had been an
assistant professor of International Trade Law at Guangdong University of
Technology from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Zhang has been in private practice
since 1993 when he was qualified to practice law in the PRC. He is now a
partner of Beijing Anjie Law Firm and has extensive experience in the areas of
finance, investment, real estate and dispute resolution.

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (B&Z%#8E), aged 60, has been appointed as a supervisor
of the Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently an accounting professor of Shenzhen University. Mr.
Xiong is also the independent director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (A&
RN BR AT (stock code: 000014), China National Accord Medicines
Corporation Ltd. (BIZ%&[E —BEEZEMRH BRAR]) (stock code: 000028),
Shenzhen Wongtee International Enterprise Co., Ltd. (RIIT2FEEEER
PERHBRRAT]) (stock code: 000056) and Hytera Communications
Corporation Limited (BEEBERHBRAT]) (stock code: 002583). The
Shares of these four companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Wang Bin (E4), aged 56, has been appointed as a supervisor of the
Company since June 2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Precision Instrument
Department of Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master’s
degree in 1986. He was a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Jingshan Group Joint-stock Company Limited (RIIRILUEBIG B R A F),
the chief human resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited (between 1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of
Technology Shenzhen Graduate School.

Mr. Yu Jun (1), aged 44, has been appointed as a supervisor of the
Company since June 2002. Mr Yu joined the Company since June 2000 and
previously served as the manager of sales management department of the
Company. He is now the manager of IT Department of the Company.

Senior Management

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z=Z{%), aged 48, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is a director
of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Mr. Huang Jian Bo (E#)&), aged 40, has been appointed as a joint
company secretary and an authorized representative of the Company since 1
December 2008 and as a financial controller of the Company since 1 January
2012. Mr. Huang graduated from College of Accounting at Hunan University
with a bachelor’s degree in economics. Mr. Huang has been the secretary
to the Board of the Company since 2007. Mr. Huang is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Report of the Directors

EEgRE

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the development,
production and sales of medicines, the R&D of modern biological technology
business, the purchase and sales of medicines, healthcare food products and
the R&D of IVD Reagants.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2015, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 48 to 161.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2014: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 29 to financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2015, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB136,995,000.

Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
also did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 17% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 6.3%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 33% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 14.3%.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report, and their terms of employment were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

re-appointment on 25 June 2014, resigned

on 3 March 2016

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong

Mr. Xu Yan He 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

from his appointment on 3 March 2016 up to
the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company in 2016

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2014

Ms. Yu Lin 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2014

Mr. Song Ting Jiu 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

re-appointment on 25 June 2014, resigned
on 21 January 2016

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung

Mr. Yu Bo

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou from his appointment on 21 January 2016 up
to the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company in 2016

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2014

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

Mr. Yu Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2014

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Yu Bo. The Company still considers the three
independent non-executive Directors during the Year to be independent
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2017 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company and
its supervisors, the Company shall pay the supervisors, Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong,
Mr. Wang Bin and Mr. Yu Jun, the remuneration of RMB30,000, RMB30,000
and RMB20,000 per annum respectively.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note 8
to the financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors' Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or its controlling shareholder
was a party and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed
Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2015, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be and were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company, or were
required, pursuant to Rule 5.46 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

RARBBM 2R

Approximate
percentage of
Number of all the

domestic domestic shares

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued

share capital

Type of shares held (s EERRAFEE
Director/supervisor Capacity interests B8 RERZ BIIRAEZ
BE BEx g4 ERER AEREE BMABIHE BB
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal 30,561,000 2.44% 1.82%
YRR A& (Mat (@) EmEB A fEA
Mr. Yu Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,014,000 0.08% 0.06%
W5 ST A (T (b)) EmEB A fEA
Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,521,500 0.12% 0.09%
RIEASTLE (17 () EmEB A fEA
Notes: Mt -

(@) Executive Director and general manager of the Company (resigned on 3 March

2016)

(b)  Supervisor and employee of the Company

(c)  Non-executive Director of the Company

(@) ABARANTEEFHRALE(N_FT—RF=A

= HEHT)
(b) ABARFREERES

(0 ARERFRBZERITESR
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Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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RARBEBEERD ZHR

Approximate
percentage of
associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Type of corporation corporation {HAEEEE

Director Capacity interests Pt BEEELE ERITREZ

BE g4 EREN EEEE ZREE BHAED

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 532,437 0.07%
SREES A (Mt (@) BEmEEA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BEAEY

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 3,553,517 0.47%
BIEESRE (WD) BmEAA {8\  Bio-engineering
BEEY

Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,089,864 0.14%
T+ (K777 () BE=EAA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BITEY

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (d)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,010,000 0.13%
REA & (H157 (d) BEmEEA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BEAEY

Notes: B

(@  Mr. Zhang Feng, deputy chairman of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, was beneficially interested in approximately 0.07% of the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest
in approximately 71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the Company,
of which 70.38% was directly held and 1.29% was indirectly held through
Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company Limited (“Neptunus
Oriental”).

(a)
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(b)  Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, director and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.47% of the entire issued capital of
Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn
held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 1.29% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

(€ Ms. Yu Lin, vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.14% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company's controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 1.29% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

(d) Mr. Song Ting Jiu, vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.13% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 1.29% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant to Rule 5.46
to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants

Up to 31 December 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Share Options,
Warrants or Convertible Bonds

At any time during the Year, none of the Directors or supervisors of the
Company or their respective spouse or minor children were granted any
share options, warrants or convertible bonds of the Company, its subsidiaries
or associated corporation.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2015, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company) in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
EEEWME

FERRNR G K AABER M EDS

BARARESRESHM  RZT—AF+=A
=t+—H BRR(WHFEARAFEF EFHES
TTHAB)IRIBEFES R HAEIEAE 336 1KAH K
N AMETE 2 B M AR SR e AR BIRE 1 Sk A RE AR
DA E A T A A D B A RS &S0k
B

RARRR D 2R

Approximate

Approximate percentage of
Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
BB Vg ] RSN
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity RER AERKN ERITRAM
FTERRER 56 RS EE BHEDH BHEI
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEY (Kt (@) EmBEAA
Interest in controlled 21,650,000 1.73% 1.29%
corporation
REZESEE N ER
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) (Note (b)) corporation
RYEEEERG BRAA FEXEREE RS
(DeEEE D #F®)
Shenzhen Yinhetong Investment Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Company Limited (“Yinhetong”) corporation
(Note (c)) A XESDER R
AT E B R A A
(TR ) (f752 ()
Mr. Zhang Si Min (Note (d)) Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
SRBERSAE (W) corporation
AR EE N ER
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (g)) Interest of spouse 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
FERL L (H15E () [k
Bank of Hangzhou Co., Ltd., Security interest in shares 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
Shenzhen Branch BAEREER

("Bank of Hangzhou") (Note (1))
TNERT TR D B PR A 7]
w17 (TN ERTT ) (B a2 ()
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Notes:

(@  Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 21,650,000
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Oriental as the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus
Bio-engineering. Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-
engineering was directly and indirectly interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company.

(b)  Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 23.98% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

(©)  Yinhetong was deemed to be interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the
Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to in note (a) above,
held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Yinhetong was beneficially interested in
approximately 58.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group,
which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately 23.98% of the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

(d)  Mr. Zhang Si Min (“Mr. Zhang") was deemed to be interested in 1,202,650,000
domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares
referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Mr.
Zhang was beneficially interested in 70% of the entire issued share capital of
Yinhetong, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately 58.96% of
the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially
interested in approximately 23.98% of the entire issued share capital of
Neptunus Bio-engineering.

()  Ms. Wang lJin Song (“Ms. Wang"”) was deemed to be interested in
1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel
of shares referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ms.
Wang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and was taken to be beneficially interested in
any shares held by Mr. Zhang.

(f)  Bank of Hangzhou was deemed to be interested in 1,181,000,000 domestic
shares of the Company held by Neptunus Bio-engineering, as such
domestic shares have been pledged to Bank of Hangzhou.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions of the Group exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements during the Year are set out
below:

Nepstar Distribution Agreement

On 17 December 2014, the Company entered into a distribution agreement
(“Nepstar Distribution Agreement”) with Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) (a company indirectly owned by the former
chairman of the Company’'s Board, Mr. Zhang Si Min, and therefore
a connected person of the Company), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply self-manufactured drugs to Nepstar. The annual caps of
such transactions for the year 2015, 2016 and 2017 would not exceed
RMB21,000,000, RMB24,000,000 and RMB26,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Group has supplied drugs of approximately
RMB13,641,000 in total to Nepstar, which has not exceeded the annual cap
of the above agreement.

Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement

On 17 December 2014, the Company entered into a distribution agreement
(the “Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement”) with Shenzhen Neptunus
Jiankang Technology Development Company Limited CZEIIT/ETEERE
BRI R AR ART) (“Neptunus Jiankang”), a fellow subsidiary and a
connected person of the Company, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase and distribute various food products and healthcare food products
manufactured by Neptunus Jiankang. The annual caps of such transactions
for the year 2015, 2016 and 2017 would not exceed RMB60,000,000,
RMB75,000,000 and RMB95,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Group purchased various food products and healthcare
food products in aggregate of approximately RMB5,950,000 from Neptunus
Jiankang, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.
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Hangzhou Neptunus Distribution Agreement

On 6 February 2013, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Hangzhou Neptunus Distribution Agreement”) with
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (MM EEMTRER LD
7)) ("Hangzhou Neptunus”), a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of
the Company, pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various
food products and healthcare food products manufactured by Hangzhou
Neptunus for distribution in the PRC. The annual caps of such transactions
would not exceed RMB4,500,000, RMB5,500,000 and RMB6,500,000 for
the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December 2013 and for the year
2014 and 2015 respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased food products and
healthcare food products of approximately RMB3,779,000 from Hangzhou
Neptunus, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Purchase Agreement

On 28 November 2014, Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Pharmaceutical
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group and therefore a fellow
subsidiary and a connected person of the Company) entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Neptunus Pharmaceutical Purchase Agreement”), pursuant
to which Neptunus Fuyao will purchase certain pharmaceutical ingredients
manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the production of certain
medicines by Neptunus Fuyao. The annual caps of such transactions for the
period from 28 November 2014 to 31 December 2014 and for the year 2015
would not exceed RMB4,800,000 and RMB11,600,000 respectively.

During the year, Neptunus Fuyao has purchased pharmaceutical ingredients
of approximately RMB8,156,000 in total from Neptunus Pharmaceutical,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
Nepstar Distribution Agreement, Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement,
Hangzhou Neptunus Distribution Agreement and Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Purchase Agreement (1) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial terms and on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;
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(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Continuing Connected Transaction Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction of the Group not exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements within the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement

On 6 February 2013, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement”) with
Neptunus Pharmaceutical (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group
and therefore a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of the Company),
pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various medicines
manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for distribution in the PRC for
the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December 2013. On 3 July 2013,
based on the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement, Neptunus
Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical entered into a supplementary
agreement (the “Supplementary Agreement”), pursuant to which, upon
the approval of independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 13 September 2013, the period of Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Distribution Agreement was extended to 31 December 2015, and the annual
cap for the year 2013 was increased to RMB38,000,000 while two annual
caps of RMB45,000,000 and RMB54,000,000 for the year 2014 and 2015
were newly added respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased drugs of approximately
RMB53,795,000 from Neptunus Pharmaceutical, which did not exceed the
annual cap of the above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement (as supplemented by the
Supplementary Agreement) (1) was entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial terms and on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board comfirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Connected Transaction

Connected Transaction Exempt from Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirements

Technology Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical

On 9 April 2013, Jiangsu Neptunus, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a Technology Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group and therefore a fellow subsidiary and
a connected person of the Company), pursuant to which Jiangsu Neptunus
agreed to acquire an intangible asset called “approval for recombinant
human thymosin a1 clinical research” and all related technology thereunder
(“Recombinant Technology”) owned by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for a
consideration of RMB13,000,000. The consideration will be paid by four
installments according to the progress of clinical trial of Jiangsu Neptunus’
recombinant human thymosin a1 for injection. Jiangsu Neptunus has already
paid the consideration of RMB6,000,000 during 2013. In 2014 and 2015,
Jiangsu Neptunus did not pay any consideration to Neptunus Pharmaceutical.
The Company disposed of 100% equity interest in Jiangsu Neptunus in
January 2016, since then Jiangsu Neptunus ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company, and therefore the transaction under the Technology Transfer
Agreement would not constitute a connected transaction of the Company
since January 2016.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering entered into an agreement
with the Company containing undertakings relating to non-competition and
preferential rights of investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”),
pursuant to which Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company and its associates (among others), that as long as the securities of
the Company are listed on GEM:

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form, or
manufacture any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company will also be entitled to the preferential rights to participate in the
investments in such new investment projects.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in note
1(p) and 5 to the financial statements.
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Auditor

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the Company’s auditor in 2015. The financial statements have
been audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
18 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year.

(B) Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.

(©) The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of the
management. As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. During the
Year, Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Chai Xiang Dong and Mr. Xu Yan He served
as executive Directors, Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, Ms. Yu Lin and Mr. Song Ting
Jiu served as non-executive Directors and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Yu Bo served as independent non-executive
Directors. The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company
to the executive Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Company under the guidance of the General Manager.
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Corporate Governance Report
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During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
15 to 18, with details of diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications concerning the Directors. The term of office of each
independent non-executive Directors are set out on page 22 of this
annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

The Board held four board meetings during the Year. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate director to attend any board meetings
during the Year.
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(D) Committees

The Board strives to maintain an excellent corporate governance and
has established committees with written terms of reference setting out
the powers and duties of the committees.

1.  Audit Committee
The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21
August 2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka
Yeung. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

judgments contained therein,

to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve
any issues of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process
in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than
one audit firm are involved,;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
before submission to the
Board, focusing particularly on any changes in accounting
policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, etc;
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(v) to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

(vi) to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and to ensure the management has discharged its
duties in maintaining an effective internal control system;

(vii) to review the external auditors' letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

(viii) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s letter to the
management;

(ix) to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and,
in particular, the matters required to be performed by the
Audit Committee under the Corporate Governance Code;

(x) to act as the key representative body overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditors; and

(xi) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary).

The Company’s and the Group's financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who were of the opinion that these statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM
and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year (of
which two meetings were held with the external auditors) to
discuss issues including the accounting policies adopted by the
Group, internal control and financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
March 2012. Currently the Nomination Committee comprises
one executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. Mr. Zhang Feng is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy.

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Nomination Committee has adopted the Board Diversity
Policy (the “Policy”) which became effective on 1 September
2013. A summary of this Policy together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress
towards achieving those objectives are outlined below.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of this Policy.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August
2005, comprising one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

() pursuant to provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i) to determine the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company and
to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors; and
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(i) to review and approve their performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
of the Company resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
of the Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and
commitment to the Company with reference to the Company’s
profitability and the prevailing market conditions. The
Remuneration Committee should consult the executive Director
and the General Manager about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Senior Management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to discuss the remuneration evaluation system of the Group.

(E) Record of number of Board and committee
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Directors Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
BE RERBFRE =g EREEE yMEes REZEEE
Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board) 11 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1
R (EFES L) TEA
Chai Xiang Dong 171 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
EJEE TEA TEMA TEA
Xu Yan He 1 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
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Liu Zhan Jun 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
2l5E TiERA TiERA TiERA
Yu Lin 11 4/4 5/5 N/A N/A
Tk TiEMA TiERA
Song Ting Jiu 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
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(F) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, all members of the Board had attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to their
own professionals. The Company also gave advice to Directors from time
to time in respect of training courses.

(G) Chairman and General Manager

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the
approval and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation
of the Company’s performance and oversight of the management. The
General Manager (same role as the post of chief executive pursuant
to the Corporate Governance Code) is responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the Company. The articles of the association of the
Company has set out the role and powers of the Chairman and General
Manager. The roles of the Chairman and General Manager are separate
and are not be performed by the same individual.

(H) Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

)

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, approximately RMB1,518,000 (2014: RMB1,300,000)
and approximately RMB913,000 (2014: RMB699,000) were charged to
the Group'’s income statement for the external auditors’ audit services
and other services respectively.
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(J) Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the system of internal control
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. To facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the
importance of a sound internal control system. The Company’s system
of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
any material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objectives.

During the Year, the management of the Company has appointed
an external consultant to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system with focus on risk management of the Company and
has submitted the results of the review and its recommendations and
opinions for consideration to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
Audit Committee and the Board have discussed the relevant results
of the review and appropriate modifications will be made to the
management system of the Company according to the findings and
recommendations therein. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its own observations and with the
assistance of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and
risk management process are satisfactory for the nature and size of the
Group's operations and business.

(K) Constitutional Documents

The constitutional documents of the Company have been published
both on the GEM and the Company’s website. At the annual general
meeting convened on 13 May 2013, certain amendments to the articles
of association of the Company (the “Proposed Amendments”) were
duly passed. On 25 June 2014, the relevant government authorities
approved the Proposed Amendments with slight changes (the
“Final Amendments”). Please refer to the announcement published
by the Company on 25 June 2014 for the details of the Proposed
Amendments and the Final Amendments.
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(L) Shareholder’s Rights

U

(ii)

(iii)

According to the articles of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request.

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company, by email to hjp@interlong.com, or by fax to
(86) 755 8639 1610 or by mail to Suite 2301, Neptunus Yinhe
Technology Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to hjb@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 8639 1610 or by mail
to Suite 2301, Neptunus Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd
Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The
request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
18 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M 2 BN R

Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 161, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

HE%E (B8) SMBEMERLA
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

B5 R BIEET7 BER .08
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

% 5hH Main +852 2894 6888

{#E Fax +852 2895 3752
www.crowehorwath.hk
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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olidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Bk

the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—ZT-AF+-A=-1+—ALFE

2014

—E—pFE

Note RMB’000

D AREFTT

REVENUE A 3,11 648,268
COST OF SALES SHEM A (371,534)
GROSS PROFIT EF 276,734
OTHER REVENUE Hag A 4 10,345
OTHER NET INCOME Hitg A5 4 77
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HEAX (116,682)
Administrative expenses 1IRF (53,152)
Other operating expenses Hh g (45,863)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS R R 71,459
Finance costs B E 5(a) (11,078)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION RRBE AR 5 60,381
Income tax FriSHi 6(a) (15,934)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 44,447

Attributable to: AT e
Owners of the Company RAREB A 33,174
Non-controlling interests Elelibg: e 11,273
44,447
ERER
AEXREE 10 1.98 cents

AR 1.980

FES6eEEF 161 BRMMEBR L ST HBHREN—

BBy e

1 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensi{l_

GEERREMEE

For the year ended 31 December .
HE-_ZT-AF+-_A=t—HIFE

2014
—ZT—F
RMB’000
ARETFT
Profit for the year AEFEE R 44,447
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEmKE -
for the year
Total comprehensive income AEEZENFALE
for the year 44,447
Attributable to: AT e,
Owners of the Company RATEAA 33,174
Non-controlling interests JEPE R b 2 11,273
Total comprehensive income AEELHEKEERE
for the year 44,447

The notes on pages 56 to 161 form part of these financial statements. FES6eEEF 161 BN BRI ZENBRERH—
o e -
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'blidated Statement of Financial Position

RSN R

2014
—ZT—PUFE
RMB’000
ARETIT

HEBRRZFER

Note
B s
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE REE 12
Prepaid lease payments TEHEERIE 13
Intangible assets BVEE 14
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME - BEKRESN

plant and equipment i7&n 15
Deposit for acquisition of land BETHHNES 16
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 18

Deferred tax assets B BBEE 26(b)
Value-added tax recoverable AJ U S (AT 20

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 19
Trade and other receivables JFEE 52 B 0 e L At W T8 20
Principal protected deposit RANEFRR 21
Pledged bank deposit EHEARITIFR 22
Fixed deposit TE BiTF AR 23
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 23
AERFELED
HEHERZEE 32
REBEE

FERTRR R S HL Ath FE A< 51 IE 24
Mt B ERITIEE 25

183,351
65,589
144,538

12,507
38,238
300
1,465
7,944

453,932

140,543
146,233
20,000

15,372
235,584

557,732

557,732

240,535
115,000

9,000
1,641
10,381

(376,557)



Consolidated Statement of Financi;{
e B

Note
gz
Liabilities of disposal group DERIFELE
classified as held for sale MEEHRRZEE 32
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERAREBEE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEEF
Deferred revenue PRI ZE 28
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR 26(b)
NET ASSETS EEFRE
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to EATRHEEA
owners of the Company PEfhREE
Share capital &N 29
Reserves it 30
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR
TOTAL EQUITY B

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March

2016.

2014
—E-mF

RMB’000
ARBTTT

Zhang Feng
%=1

Director

EE

(376,557)

181,175

635,107

14,889
20,167

(35,056)

600,051

167,800
342,052

509,85
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'blidéted Statement of Changes in Equity

Rem—mE+=A=1+—~

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALREEARR
Statutory Non-
Share Share  reserve Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium fund  reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity

e RORE heiEé  EARE  RiEE NG FERESR fis
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETI
(Note30)  (Note31)  (Note31)

(ME30) (W31 (sE31)

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-WE-F-A 167,800 554,844 2716 (194,487) (74195 476,678 83,926 560,604
Change in equity for 2014 2-DEEESE
Profit for the year TERRH - - - - B B 11273 44447
Total comprehensive income FEE2AUEER

for the year, net of tax (B5t%&) - - - - B B3I 11,273 44447
Dividend paid from subsidiary R RES

to non-controling interests HMBATRE - - - - - - (5000 (5,000
Transfer to other reserves ERRLMEE - - 758 - (7528) - - -
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-ME+=B=1-A 167,800 554,844 30244 (194,48) (48,549) 509,852 90,199 600,051
At 1 January 2015 RZE-15-A-R

ZE-nEREEE
AEEEH

AERRANHAR
(B5#)

R
HELARS
S BEARFELH

HEF 161 AMMEBAI EF B REAN —
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Consolidated Statement of C‘ash

%’%fﬁ.@bl-

x

For the year ended 31 Dece

ﬁ§:§—£¢+:ﬂz+—éﬁ¢§

2014
ZE—HF
Note RMB’000
FisE AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TEEE
Profit before taxation FRE A& 60,381
Adjustments for: TR -
Depreciation e 19,042
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR TR ERIRE 1,570
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 4,160
Impairment of trade receivables FEUARFORE 376
Impairment of other receivables H b pEUGRIE R (A 170
Bad debts written off SR 7
Recovery of impairment on trade FEUBR TR E B
receivables (19)
Recovery of impairment on other oA e R IERE
receivables (5] (36)
Write off of other payable oAt T FRIE M 3 (11)
Finance costs 5 &R 11,078
Interest income FEUA (3,866)
Subsidy income released from B RS
deferred revenue ON (6,417)
Written down of inventories WomFE 4,754
Reversal of write down of inventory FEMRRE (11)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WE KEE
plant and equipment Colgti!
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESHD

Increase in inventories FEEM
Increase in trade and other receivables JRE M52 AR 350 e L At JRE LSRR TR S A
Increase in trade JE A5 BR A R H A FE ST SRR

and other payables il



ded 31 December 2015
F+ZA=+—RALFE

2014
—ZT—PUFE
Note RMB’'000
B s AREFIT
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS & E4BES 53,104
Income tax paid — PRC EFTEH— (13,993)
CASH GENERATED FROM RETHELERS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 39,111
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETED
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BERRENES
plant and equipment (6,540)
Deposit for acquisition of land BEITHWHNIES (20,908)
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE  BEREREBHNR
plant and equipment (16,596)
Payment for expenditure of B EERZHNR
intangible assets (4,302)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - HE KRB
plant and equipment FriSE8 32
Interest received BUFILE 3,866
Government grants received IEGSRHEUL N 8,057
Increase in pledged deposits BEHEAFEFIE M -
Increase in fixed deposits TE HRTF SR8 00 (13,372)
‘Decrease/(increase) in principal RARTFFR A,/ (320)
rot osit (20,000)
HE—MHBARZ
R F5E -

REEBRARSFE
(69,763)



Consolidated Stateme‘nt of Cf

AR 3
For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_ZT-—RF+-A=

as held for sale

The notes on pages 56 to 161 form part of these financial statements.

2014
—Z—FE
Note RMB’000
FisE ARETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Proceeds from new bank loans FIGIRITE RS RIE 130,000
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (101,000)
Proceeds from financial assistance EESGIEPNG =1
from a fellow subsidiary FriS 308 -
Repayment of financial assistance to BEEBIARMBEER
the immediate parent company (329)
Interest paid EARFE (11,078)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests IRAS FEVE IR 2R O AR B (4,868)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM &&558 (FTA), E4BLFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 12,725
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERELEEYEMNCAD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (17,927)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HNWEBEESRESEZEY
AT | JANUARY 253,511
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-A=+—HHRER
AT 31 DECEMBER REZEY 235,584
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RT=ZA=+—HHWRER
EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER REEBYHH
Bank balances and cash RITHESHREES 23
Bank balances and cash included in AN TR IELEER®
assets of disposal group classified BEZRITHEBRIRE



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E-AFt+_A=+—HBLLEE

1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and it is also the
functional currency of the Company and the Group's presentation
currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

a)

b)

FTESHEE

BREH

AU BHRRIBBEELGTMAE ([ EFE
SEENAE ) R AEREEM SR
SR ([FEMBHREER ) (hBEER
AR E BT B MEER - FE G LR
(IFEEER ) LRE)  BERRES
RAIRERRBHEDINBBERE - A%
BRMETEHRNEBBEXZMERR
Al EMARA WEHRI - AEERA
MEASHTBRRBENT -

BB G AE R BURRIE REEET
EKBEMBREER)  IRAFEALE
BEARARNE R ERERIAKESR
BRim - RE 2 IR R AR ERZ SRS
HEAHREHNEN  TZEEHRE
HREAEEEEMAERRERHREFS
SHHIM B TSR

A BRROEE
HE-_ZT-—AF+-A=1+—HILFEN
REVBHRRBEARRREMB AR (5
R IAEE]) -

BENAEESERNMBHRERANIER
DEBAHERCEMAENTIREBERR
MER((HEER D FE - RERB®REK
TIRARBITARE]D 2% MARE
BRARBZNGEEERAEEZ 258
®oBRRBHEAIN MAESBEHUANER
ATAHNBESEI TR -
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b)

9]

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis. Assets of disposal groups
classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell (see note 32).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 41.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those return
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

RS ERFEENERMRHBBERAT 2015 F5HK 57
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Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2k

iR Yt

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHEZ

<)

- HE+-A=+—AILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(9]

FTEEHR ()
G PSS EAC )
B SRS 2 R0 42 R A R B
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9]

d)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of
a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHEZ

d)

e)

f)

- HE+-A=+—AILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups,
are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit
or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Investments in equity securities

Available-for-sale equity securities that are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in carrying value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. When
the investment is disposal of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in fair value reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see note 1(j)) at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 1(j)).
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f)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value of 5% to 10%
on cost, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of completion;

—  other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

51to 10 years

510 10 years

510 10 years

5 to 30 years or over the
remaining term of
the lease, if shorter

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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f)

9)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and machinery in
the course of construction for production, supply or administration
purposes are carried and at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Cost includes the direct costs of construction, professional fee and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Technical know-how 10 years
Computer software 5to 10 years
Trademarks 10 years
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9)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

e theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Other intangible assets arising from business combinations

Anesthetic drug production and selling right, trade name, customer list
and selling licenses acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The anesthetic drug production and
selling right and trade name has indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less impairment losses. The useful life of the anesthetic drug production
and selling right and trade name are considered by the management
of the Group as indefinite because the anesthetic drug production and
selling right, and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group's
net cash inflows indefinitely. The customer list and selling licenses has
a finite useful life of 10 years and 5 years respectively and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the useful life.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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1.

h)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land for own use

Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHEZ

- HE+-A=+—AILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investment in equity security and other
receivables
Investment in equity security and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

j)  Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. XES quBZ
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREGE
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other i) BAE %;ﬁz B R A M E Y E R
receivables (Continued) (#&)

—  For trade receivables and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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1.

j)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

ii)

property, plant and equipment;

prepaid lease payments;

intangible assets; and

interest in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are
not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (that is a cash-generating unit).
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1.

)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1.
)

k)

m)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1())).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 1(j)).

Other non-derivative financial instruments

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
note 1())).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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n)

o)

p)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central
pension scheme
The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the
“CPS") operated by the local government authority for all of
its employees in “PRC"”. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the CPS.
Contributions under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
central pension scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

i)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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q)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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BHEZ

a)

- HE+=A=+—AILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current deferred tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
q) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (that
is, the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is receive or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESFTBCER (E)
r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities r) ERHMKER BERIAREE (FH)

(Continued)

i) Financial guarantees issued (Continued) i) CEMHBIBEERE)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred SRR A AR RS BIZE
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the RIEX B NS - (EAIRETS
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In BERZBA  do - iE () ERAL
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note 1(r) BEARUEERASEETERSE
(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the 45 R (i) MALERENRIATEIR
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) B IR BB PR B AT BR 3K N E b B < 3R IR
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the ARERSE (AR VERNSERR
amount currently carried in trade and other payables in respect FHEESE) - RIZBIRMTEE 1(nGi) IRETIR
of that guarantee, that is, the amount initially recognised, less Bl -

accumulated amortisation.

ii)  Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations i) EHEEHFBEEHEARERE
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which E¥BEHPRENKARBEIBNR
are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially SEBNBASE  NFBEEATFE
recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably R (HAFEMNEASEAE) - R
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such NP ERZIAEABNEREVNTHERS
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount B R E#NE(WEA) - URATRE
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation where HEE1(NGIREM S EMEFHERS
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in EER - EFAEHTNBTXAGE
accordance with note 1(r)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a REEAISEFTE  EXRSHEAMS I
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were FEMBELE - BIRHIEE1((i) IR
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 1(r)(iii).

iii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities iii) RtREREAERE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing EASKESARAEAEBEEMFM
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or FERERNIETE A - M AR
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is REER B EZRLE - B EH
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to A SefREr - AVRYRRET RS
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where MO HMBEERE - HEEREN
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the RREIEE - RIRERREHBERT
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. i X IR EDIER -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits fis BT BE BB B AR AL BRI AR O > 3K
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, ARASBBRR] b - AIREELE
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the RTEXRBERE - RIFTEGA
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible Pz 7t d B 7] BEMERR AR © AT BEEE £ 1)
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the EE(EFERTA—EXZERA%KS
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are FREO B AE SN SREETE ) TMERSUA
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of BERE  RIFREGEBEFRR LN
outflow of economic benefits is remote. FTREVERRIE -
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s)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Research and development service income
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Government grant

Government grants and subsidies are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.
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BHEZ

1)

u)

- HE+-A=+—AILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
v) Related parties

a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
v) Related parties (Continued)
b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is part,
- provides key management personnel services to the Group
or the Group's parent.

ors of the family of a person are those family
ay be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
eir dealings with the entity.
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w)

X)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
(that is, executive directors) for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grants and subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grants and subsidies relate to an expense item, they are recognised
as income or net off against directly related borrowing costs (see note
1(u)), over the periods necessary to match the grants and subsidies on
a systematic basis to the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Where the grants and subsidies relate to an asset, they are presented
as deferred revenue and are released to the income profit or loss over
they are expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-—F AF+-A=+—HILER

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013
Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments to
nine standards with consequential amendments to other standards.
Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures has been amended
to expand the definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of the amounts incurred
for obtaining the key management personnel services provided by the
management entity. These amendments do not have an impact on the
Group’s related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

Ha] RAEZR] B R MBS R
(TEBYHEHREAER ) R
RAFE  AREERMNTaEEES
WA R AT RIGIE T BB S s
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BREHERFE 195 RERAEE
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BB EWE LR B WS 2R
ZAEE] —E-TFE
—T-FEH
2 FEE
BB EWELER BB EWwELEL
pd 11 —T——FF
T —FAH
2 FEWE

BTXAaES  RAFERBEBYH
BELANZETHARBEAFERBEF
EHPBRATMIE IREGEUH
BERMERBEEEATE -

FBEH

A

EBUKBREEN_—_ZT—ZTFZF
FRER-_FE——FEZE-_FT—=
FELE

Nl

ZMEBHNFEREESEFEENIEER
REMEANANERER ZER] - BF
BB G ERE 24 RRE T WEN [ B2
T ERBEAZERANZREREHTIRE
EAEBRBHEEER AYAREEES
ERERRERRIEEBASRBEMELN
HIH o ZEBITHAEEBEL WELE
FE RASKAKEUELEEERES
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Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the research and development
("R & D") of modern biological technology and the provision of R & D
services, production and sales of medicines and sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products in the PRC.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold net of value-added
tax and after allowances for returns and trade discounts and invoiced
value of R & D services provided net of value-added tax.

BE-T—ARf+— A=+

LN

AEENEBEEBBREED BT LHFEE
(TA1 % 1) B E MR R R AT IR -
EEMEEEY RHEE Ry HERRRE

o
am °

WA EERMBER(NBREERLRE
ME S HEE) MR ERBOER
(B IgER) -

2014
—ZT—JUFE
RMB’000
ARET T

Sales of medicines B ERE

Sales and distribution of medicines SHE o %M RIRED
and healthcare products

R & D services income

e R BN

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 17 to these financial statements.

509,989

137,177
1,102

648,268

FRASENTIEEB 2 E—SFBERE
RSP BEHRERMET -
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4. HMWAR MU A FEE

4. Other Revenue and Other Net Income

2014
—E—E
Note RMB’000
k3 ARBFT
Other revenue Hgl A
Interest income from bank deposits RITAF A BIA 3,866
Total interest income on financial WIEFE BB =R N T ER
assets not at fair value TREENT WAL
through profit or loss 3,866
Subsidy income B
— amount released from —EEAREWNARFRIE
deferred revenue 28 6,417
— amount directly —EETABER
credited to profit or loss HIFIE -
Compensation from PRC A BB R R R
government authority -
Others EHAh 62
10,345
Other net income HibW A F88
Recovery of impairment FEURBR SR (B B2 2]
' I 19
HAth fE MR IB R B R HE ]
36
T eH EoAth AT FRIR 11
FEMRRD 1

EE 31 W 2 3R

77



5. Profit before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

For the year ended 31 D
BE_ZT-RF+-_A=

5. BRBIADEA

BR BB M T NER AT 08

2014
—ZE—mF

RMB'000
AREFT

a) Finance costs a)
Interest on bank loans and
other borrowings
Interest on financial assistance
from the immediate
parent company

Total interest expense on
financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss

b) Staff costs (including directors’ b)
emoluments) *
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, wages and other benefits

MBER
RITERREAMEEOF S

HESRRIMBENNFE

WIFEBIESR A HETIR
TRARON AR

BETHA(BEEEHE) ~:

TR FURIRG EIROHR

e TERHEMABR

* During the year, total staff costs amounted to RMB93,051,000 (2014:
RMB87,553,000) of which staff costs of RMB1,134,000 (2014:
RMB2,854,000) was capitalized as intangible assets and excluded from

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

6,669

4,409

11,078

15,299
69,400

84,699

* RAFEE BID
93,051,000 7L ( :
87,553,000

1,134,000
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5. Profit before Taxation (Continued) 5.

Pt

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

(Continued)

BRBEATER ()
B BEATE P TSR A TR I8 - ()

2014
—ZE—OF
RMB’000
AREFTT

c¢) Otheritems
Amortisation
— prepaid lease payments
- charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss
— capitalised in construction-
in-progress

—intangible assets *
Depreciation
— assets held for own use
under operating leases
— other assets
Impairment of

)

HhEg :
B
— B ERE
— T AGEBER

—RERIERNERL

— B EE*
e
—REQEHERFERNEE

—HWEE
iE

— R

— O
2R *
Rz 1 *
HEYE - B R EBA IS *

ZEETE &
—E TR
—H AR

RERERY : REES

1,570

1,570

4,160

4,206
14,836

376
170

7
4,754

417

1,300
699

6,593
370,228
35,461

* BEESBEFAGSRARNIEMBELER
IR



6.

Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss

a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

Notes to the Finahcial Sta

Bt 745

For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_ZT-—RF+-A=

6. MESEBRIIHIFFES

a) REABHERIILMMEHRE

2014
—ZT—JUFE
RMB’000
ARET T

Note
M eE

Current tax BUEA 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")

Under provision for PRC EIT MBEFERBEDEEHN

in respect of prior years BETRE
Deferred tax EERE
Origination and reversal of BRI EREOITAE R

temporary differences

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
had no assessable profits to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2014: Nil).

On 9 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC was recognised by the Fujian Province Bureau of Science and
Technology as a high technology enterprise. As at 31 December
2015 and 2014, two subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are qualified as high technology enterprise. In accordance
with the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, these
subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a preferential rate of
15%.

TRGEAEH ( [REMRSEH] )

16,828

128

26(b)

(1,022)

15,934

HARAEEL BABANETBNEHL
ERBUGE A - AR AEFEAE R
BRNEHEB(—ZT-—HF:F) -

#_i——ﬁmﬂn-;—ﬁ#¢l

A E DS
B 15% K

The other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of

25% (2014: 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss (Continued)

b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at the

applicable tax rates:

6. MEABBERFHMFEH

(#&)

b) B th B A R A R
FIRYLIEE

2014
—ZT—PUF
RMB’000
ARET T

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits in
the countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Under provision in prior years

Actual tax expenses

BRAR A& A

R IR A AR RE B 2K A0 M AR B R AT
HBRBADEM I B RBIA
OEEIGEE A2
IRV E
REERBE AT AR E R
MBTE

BEFENBBETR

ERMIES

60,381

9,464

947
(1,187)

6,582
128

15,934




7. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, and the chief
executive's emoluments (that is, general manger) are as follows:

Executive directors BITES
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong LRkt
(Chief Executive Officer) (THEE)(R=E—~F
(resigned on 3 March 2016) = A=RHEF)
Mr. Zhang Feng RETE
Mr. Xu Yan He HEMELE
Non-executive directors FBITES
Ms. Yu Lin Tkt
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun B EEEE
Mr. Song Ting Jiu REAFLE

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SR E
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERBEE
Mr. Yu Bo (resigned on FHEERZZT—FF

21 January 2016) —AZ+—HEHE)

For the year ended 31 D
BE_T-RF+-_A=

7. EERERITBRAEME
REE B DR G5 3830) KR AR (RE
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7. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 7. EERSRITHAEME (E)
(Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2014
fees inkind  contributions Total
b A RIREHE —TF
RS REWF = i mEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETRT AR¥®TT ARETR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong SR E
(Chief Executive Officer) (FTER %) - 638 40 678
Mr. Zhang Feng REEEE - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He RIS & - 480 31 511
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Yu Lin Tkt - - - -
Mr. Ren De Quan FEELE (R —TE
(resigned on 31 January 2014) —A=Zf+—H&T) 33 - - 33
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 2 hERE - - - -
Mr. Song Ting Jiu REALE(RZT—TEF
(appointed on 31 January 2014) —RA=+—HB%#f) - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B FEHITES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKERE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERBEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Yu Bo (appointed on 5 August 2014)  F#iE (R -T—M4F
NARBEEMA) 100 - - 100
451 1,118 71 1,640
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong is the director and the general manager of EMREERARTNEETRELE 8
the Company and is responsible for the Company’s day to day EARARTEEEERBEER - LLALER
management and overall activities. The remuneration of Mr. Chai for TE-OERZT-RAFHNME R L
2014 and 2015 is disclosed above. B e
During both years, no remuneration were paid or payable by the Group RREFE  AEEWEREZEES WS AT
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out MAEEEHEESNME  ERIMAR
in note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SE S MNAKREE R ZE S 1E AR
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under E-rPMEFE WESZEWELRIMN
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during BEMAMEOLH - BERNBIRELASE
both years. No bonus was paid or payable to directors which are ERBRAESE(TEMNIEA o

discretionary or are based on the Group’s performance.
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10.

a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1+—BIEE

Individuals with Highest Emoluments 8. meFMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2014: two) REZERTMNEE 2P  ME(ZF—
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in FWMB)RARAES - HFMFBRM
the disclosures in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments of the H7 - HEB=R(ZZ—NF : ZR)&kaH
remaining three (2014: three) individuals are as follows: BiE B M E BRSO T -
2015 2014
—E-AHF —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Salaries and other emoluments e N H B 1,282 1,269
Retirement scheme contributions IRPRETEIBER 91 118
1,373 1,387
Their emoluments are all within the band of HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Bz _Z—AFr_ZE—WNFEF+_A
(equivalent to approximately RMB837,780) for years ended 31 ST+ —BALEFEESHFMHEENFEE
December 2015 and 2014, N FZAEITE 1,000,000 7T (FHERLOA
R#837,7807T) °
.. A=
Dividends 9. KR
The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year %$ﬂﬂ:g5§ ENBE-F-AF+ A
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). ST -RLFEREARL(ZF—MF:
) o
. haly =}
Earnings Per Share 10. SR AR
Basic earnings per share a) SREXEF _
The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the ngzlxga’%ljaﬁyizk?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ}\ﬂg{aﬁ
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately %lj%ﬁAE%21,055,(¥)0n(:§*E¢ FA
RMB21,055,000 (2014: approximately RMB33,174,000) and the R¥#933,174,00078) - UERAFEARE
2= Sz 5 N7 =
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2014: FATE B INAEF 19 21,678,000,000 A
- : EYaS =
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. (ZF /U4 : 1,678,000,000 B2 E@AL) &t
H o
b) SREBERF

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.

RIS ERFEENEMRGBBERAT 2015 FHR 91

B E 2 6 R I R R EINEE S
BAER R EREERNSENERER

2 -
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- HE+=A=+—AILEE

11. Segment Reporting

a)

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s executive directors for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

i) Manufacturing and selling of medicines
i) Sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products
iii)  Provision of R&D services of modern biological technology

Currently all the Group's activities above are carried out in the PRC. No
reportable operating segment has been aggregated.

The first segment derives its revenue from the manufacture and sale of
medicines.

The second segment derives its revenue from sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products.

The third segment derives its revenue from the provision of R&D
services.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s executive directors monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets,
tax recoverable and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and other payables attributable to the activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by the segments.

11.75

a)

pal nﬁi&%

REBRDBERHER - DI ILMIGE

BR(Em&RE) IEatIRa B AR -

?%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂ TEEERNBRE
DRERRERRANME  REEE 27

TﬂfﬂT$ﬁ”% BT MmEN D

AN EIELLE D FL o

i) HEMEE SR
i) HERSHEERRRER
i) FREIAR AT RS

B Al tL%ﬁ$%l¥WﬂE¢lmm
%E WA B AR A ARG E B -

—DEREVRAR B EERHE R

FNBOBARBHE RN HER KR
fit

o

80 ||

E=D R WA B AR AR AR

TREE - BEREE
M%H“%%ﬁ&“%ﬁ PEERME -
$E@mﬁﬂ§$&MT%W%ﬁ%ﬂ$

BoOMRIEMERE  BENERE:

DEMEEREMBEN  BREENRRD
BE BTEEANHLERE  ELEHE
BE AHOHRBEREMEREE - 25
BERERENDHEEERNE S REME
NRIBARZED BEEERNRITER
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11. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted EBITDA”,
that is “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisaiton”, where “interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ emoluments
and auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, the executive directors are provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment revenue), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment revenue are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to
the Group's executive directors for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 is set out below.

RS ERBFEENEMROBERAT  2015FFHR 93
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_Z-—AF+_A=T—HIFE

11. 2 &k & (&)

a)

DHEE  BEERER (H)
WARRXTIRSERRO MELNHE
BREROMELENHE KN BED AN
BENTESREMEENRAXROEE
B AR &

ARBEBEMMN T ER LFHE
EBITDAL - BN [40BRAE ~ I8 - T8 K
SHATZ CHERF] - HP [FB ] BIEERE
A - TITE R BREERBDEEZR
BEE- E%EEWEJWEBHDA REEZ
AT W RIETBNER DB IEE 1
i — R - NE 5 A% B 2 B

& RMERFERARFITHRAX

KB B RBE FE EBlTDAZ’MBéiM?&I\ :
WITESTEREEBKEM D HER
FHEDHMEZETEND BHE M E XE
DEEETECRSEHRREEZF B
ARSI H  HEBRERELERFRZIER
FOMEEMIE BHEHEREBEUAK
NE o DEEREDELREINBALHE
LETEERRERMETEE °

REBE_ZT-—AFER-_FT-—HEOFE+_H
=t ALFEZERDERFEHED R
BRARRNTESRHEEBARERS
DELZEMBRTX °
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11. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

1. 2 EpERE ()

a) 2EEE BEEREE )

Sales and distribution
Manufacturing and of medicines and
selling of medicines healthcare products R & D services Total
EENHEER HERABERRRART i &3t
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014 2014 2014
BEt-B=t-RLEE —E-pF —E-pF —5-pF ki3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NRETT NRETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue AHRA
Revenue from external customers SREPYA 509,989 137,177 1,102 648,268
Inter-segment revenue AHEEA 17,393 357 - 17,750
Reportable segment revenue TREAPUA 521,38 137,534 1,102 666,018
Reportable segment TEHATER/
profit/(loss) (adjusted EBITDA) (B#)
({SRRERITDA) 21,145 (1,955) 94,970
Interest income from bank deposits ~ SR/TZAFISIMA 87 4 3866
Interest expenses 5T - - (11,078)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREY
~ Property, plant and equipment -0% BERRE (226) (154) (23,191)
~ Prepaid lease payment -RNEERE - - (1570
- Intangible assets -BVEE (20 - (4,160)
Write down of inventories HAEE (2,361) - (4,754)
Reversal of write do FEHRRR
of i ! " - "
A
— AR (61) - (376)
—EfRAEE (24) - (170)
gt ) - 0
HERM
— [ 16 3 - 19
—EtRIGA 12 u - £
fbER5E - 1 - 1
g \ X (10,721) (5213) - (15,934)
940,070 71,590 2213 1,019,933
202 1,782 55,129
38,054 2174 391,099
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For the year ended 31
BE-T-RE+-A=

11. Segment Reporting (Continued) 1. DEHRE (F)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) NHFEE BERAEEE)
The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer with whom AEERFEZ UL HbeUWERFHEHH
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue. FIVHR ZHEE AN EE AR 10% ©

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, b) WHHRIBKRA B BERAEEHNY
assets and liabilities iR

2014
—EFE
RMB’'000
ARETT
Revenue ' ON
Reportable segment revenue AR R FULA 666,018
Elimination of inter-segment revenue % ZBEIU AL $5 (17,750)
Consolidated Revenue LAEUWA 648,268
Profit A
Reportable segment profit AR R EB i F 94,970
Elimination of inter-segment profit 53 Bl ) #E ) (1,977)
Reportable segment profit derived REAREEINREF R A] B
from the Group s external customers %3 2B Fl| 92,993

Other revenue and other net income  EAURA KU A SF5E

Depreciation and amortisation rEe R

Finance costs Bi5E R

Unallocated head office and ROBBIERRARIFAEZ
corporate expense

Consolidated profit before taxation



7_déd 31 December 2015
FHZA=tT—RHLFE

11. Segment Reporting (Continued) 1. PEERE (8)
b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, b) FWHFIFTUWA B - BEREEHNY
assets and liabilities (Continued) B (&)
2014
—ZT—NE
RMB’000
AREETTT
Assets =3
Reportable segment assets AR HBEE 1,019,933
Elimination of inter-segment receivables %> &R fE U 2R TE 1K 35 (10,034)
1,009,899
Unallocated head office and ROMBIHER R AREE
corporate assets 300
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E 1,465
Consolidated total assets A EERE 1,011,664
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AR HBEE 391,099
Elimination of inter-segment payables %> &R fE < ZIE K 35 (10,034)
381,065
FE IR 10,381
BENIEAE 20,167

411,613



)

d)

For the year ended 3 ‘
HE_ZT—RF+=H

11. Segment Reporting (Continued) 1. 7 EBHE (F)
Revenue from major products and services 0 REFEEMERBHHRA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major AT REAEEEREMMRBHUWAD
products and services: T
2014
—T P
RMB’'000
ARETT
Medicines and healthcare products 220 R (R 647,166
R&D services e AR 1,102
648,268
Geographic Information d) #EBEER

The Group's revenue and results from operations mainly derived from
activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were located
in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical
segment is provided.

AEEOBRARKEXETBERETED
EBEY - FA- ARBENEIEEEMR
FE - Fit - SRR BT o
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment
a)

Cost BRRE

At 1 January 2015 RZF-n§-F-A

Additions RE

Construction expenditure ERBRAR
capitalised

Disposals e

Derecognised on disposal AR E—RINELE
of a subsidiary

Reclassified as held for sale ENHBARBIELE

At 31 December 2015 RIB-REFTZA=T-H

Accumulated depreciation SHTERAE
and impairment ‘
At 1 Janua

R-Z-15-A-A
REELH*
HE—BHBAFRSE

HE AR
B RAREHERYE

R=B-BFH-AZ-R

T

12. 9% - BERRE
a)

&5 A ANR#%23,571,000( = ZF — M
& AR%23,191,0007T)  HFEBEA
R#19,151,000 L (Z 2 —ME : AR¥K
19,042,000 ) Z M EEFF AGEBRE K
ARM 4,420,000t (ZF—0F : ARY
4,149,00070) Z T EB BN BEFEE -

REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_ZT-—AF+A=

12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 12. 1% - BMERFKME (&)
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
Leasehold and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
BENx FE RE
BF ®  ERRRE A& Rkt EEIR it

RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB000  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBO0  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETL  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETL  ARETR

Cost BHAE
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 73,669 22,998 113,012 3,139 18,504 12,027 243439
Additions hE 4,33 3,09 7,807 189 3,801 - 19,230
Construction expenditure ERERAR
capitalised - - - - - 2,970 2,970
Disposals e (16) - (2,103 (185) (247) - (2,551)
Transfer inf(out) Z)1/(4) 3,984 - 5420 - - (9,404) -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MFT-A=1-H 81,971 26,097 124136 3,143 22,148 5,503 263,088

Accumulated depreciation ZHAERAE
and impairment

At 1 January 2014 R-F-mE-A—-H (9,508) (230) (41,349) (858) (5,870) (834) (58,649)
Charge for the year * REET T (4,206) (1,115) (13,615) (142) (3,513) - (23,191)

Eliminated on disposal of assets HEBEREH 14 - 1,710 176 203 s 2,103

At 31 December 2014 RZE-RE+-A=1-A (13,700) (1,345) (53,254) (1,424) (9,180)
Carrying amounts KEE

At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+ZA=+-R 68,271 24,752 70,88 1,719
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s buildings with a MN-E—

total carrying amount of approximately RMB38,124,000 (2014:
approximately RMB39,807,000) were pledged as part of the
securities to secure the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings of
RMB100,000,000 (2014: RMB100,000,000) (Note 25).
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13. Prepaid Lease Payments

13.

RANHEERE

2014
—E—F

RMB’000
AREFT

Cost RRAME
At 1 January m—H—H
Addition nNE
At 31 December B+=ZA=+—8~
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January m—HA—H
Charge for the year REEZH
Capitalised in construction RERTIIRRNERE
—in progress
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8

The prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the
PRC which were amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

2015 and 2014, Certain of the Group's prepaid
7. a total carrying amount of approximately
4:approximately RMB 65,589,000) were
oup’s bank loan of RMB100,000,000 (2014:

72,000

72,000

(4,841)
(1,570)

6,411)

65,589

FZHEMNEERAELN P RENEE iR
# ZERNEEREREEHRRER
TRHESH o

RZE—RAFRZZT—HF+ZA=+—
A AEEBETENBEERBBLEOA
R#¥64,018,000 (=T —MF : AR¥
65,589,000 ) EERAREERITERA
K™ 100,000,000 (=& —HF : AR¥
100,000,000 7t) (P& 25) MK IR @ o



14. Intangible Assets

Notes to the Financial S

B 1%
For the year ended 31
HE_ZT-—AF+A=

14. B EE

i)

Anesthetic
drug Internally
production Technical ~ developed
Computer and selling Trade  Customer  know-how technical Selling
software ~ Trademarks rights name list ~ acquired  know-how licences Total
BE  mERE #E
EhEH BE MEEEEE  XBEE  FFRE RMAR AR FiE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost A
At 1January 2014 RZ5-mE-A-A 393 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 6,000 6,593 1,007 153,19
Addition HE - - - - - - 8,451 - 8,451
At31 December 2014 eyt
and 1 January 2015 tZA=+-Ak
—3-1%-F-A 393 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 6,000 15,044 1,007 161,647
Addition hE 162 - - - - - 6,142 - 6,304
Reclassified as held for sale EFARARELE - - - - - (6000 (21,186) - %)
At31 December 2015 RIB-1%
tZA=1-H 555 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 - - 1,007 140,765
Accumulated amortisation ~ BitEHRHE
and impairment
At 1 January 2014 R=E-ME-A-A (357) (10) - - (12,320) - - 0 (12,949
Charge for the year TEERL -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IF
and 1 January 2015 tZA=+-Bk
“T-R5-A-H
Charge for the year FEETH
Himinated on reclssification ~~ B¥ AR
as held for sale i BRI
At 31 December 2015 NZ-1F
t-A=+-8
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
t+ZA=t1-H
At31 December 2014 RIB-ME

+-A=t-H




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 1% = I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-—F AF+-A=+—HILER

14. Intangible Assets (Continued)

b)

)

Intangible assets arising from business combination

The anesthetic drug production and selling right, trade name and
customer list are intangible assets acquired on 30 November 2010
through the acquisition of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Phamaticals Co., Ltd
(“Neptunus Fuyao”).

Anesthetic drug production and selling right represents the fair value
of the rights as at the acquisition date in respect of the production and
selling specific anesthetic drug in the PRC.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name are
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. It is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may have been impaired.

Selling licences are intangible assets acquired on 4 January 2013
through the acquisition of the 100% equity interests in Shenzhen
Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus
Changjian”).

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the anesthetic drug
production and selling right and trade name was approximately
RMB67,957,000 (2014: approximately RMB228,055,000)
and approximately RMB56,575,000 (2014: approximately
RMB100,064,000) respectively, which were assessed by reference
to a valuation carried out by Verity Appraisals Company Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer with appropriate qualification
and experience in the valuation of similar assets in the relevant industry.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, no impairment to the
carrying amount of the anesthetic drug production & selling right and
trade name as at 31 December 2015 is required since their fair value
as at the date of the report is higher than their carrying amount of
approximately RMB53,143,000 (2014: approximately RMB53,143,000)
and approximately RMB46,483,000 (2014: approximately
RMB46,483,000) respectively.

14. B EE (&)

b)

(9]

EBRENEENEREE

M SEEHEE  EBEREEPBETIR
—E-ZEFT-A=THEBKERMNE
ITRENEERAT(BERE]) KB
MWEBLEE °

TA W B B A i e 65 7 M 7 5 E S P 2 9
EHE  BREZCREETEAEREEM
MENERNATE -

REBEEER R EEHEAREH A
TR A 2 P A HAE T AR EE - R IR R B 5

ANFRERA - ZIEB SFETRENH -
NAABRE LR BRE A REBRIE

HWEMAZ IR _ZE—=ZF—-—AWBEH
WERIBETREEBEERAR(IEER
2] 2 E MR BT EE -

REXUENSHMBEEHERERSR
B
R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H NMEHEZEE
HENREBABOAFESFAHAR
67,957,000 C( —ZE—P04F : AR
228,055,0007T) k& A RH 56,575,000 7T
(ZZ—Mm%F : HJ AR 100,064,0007T)
T2RBYNAEENBIAEREER
EMEHTEARAR (EEEYRETE
BEUEEETHENERRER) EHHNM
BHRETTH ARRANEERAE - AR
rEEHEELAREFRABRRERSENA
FEDFERERAEBELNARES3,143,000
TL(ZE—F « HARM53,143,0007T)
R AR 46,483,000 T(—ZZ—M4F : 4
ARM46,483,00070) A » HEFERER
—E-—RAF+-_A=+—BHEREEET
AR °
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14. Intangible Assets (Continued)

9]

d)

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production and
selling right is determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budget
approved by the executive directors covering a four-year period. Cash
flows beyond four-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%) which is consistent
with the forecasts. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the medical industries. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 24% (2014: 22%). The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

The recoverable amount of trade name is determined based on the fair
value of trade name as measured using a royalty rate of 4.5% (2014:
4.5%) on sale and discount rate of 24% (2014: 22%). The annual sales
was projected based on financial budgets approved by the executive
directors covering a four-year period and has been extrapolated using
an average 3% (2014: 3%) growth rate. The average 3% (2014: 3%)
growth rate is based on the average 10-year consumer price index in
the PRC and does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the pharmaceutical industries.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name has an
indefinite useful life which was assessed by the management at the end
of the reporting period.

Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer list is
determined with reference to the estimated future revenue from the
customer list which is based on historical information. The management
is of the view that the future economic benefits that can be derived
from the customer list beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.
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d)

Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_Z-—AF+_A=T—HIFE

F (nla

E"‘%?T%Ll&ﬂ%'?ﬂl RN TR S E S
BER (&)

i B BEEE SRR DA R BT 2 A ey ] W Bl & KB
DIRBEREENHETENEE - %Z
HTEAAERLENITESE 2 NF B
BEHEAEENRRBAMTE - BB
MERZREREBEA3% (ZE—HF :
3%)W1ﬁé+bﬂ$%$i’ﬂiE%(Eﬁii‘ﬁ‘ﬂﬂ*ﬁ*
BOETIRA - AN RENMGHABE
TENRBFHEREX - Iﬁﬂi//\ugﬁl‘]?ﬁiﬁ
KR24% (ZZ—WF : 22%)  FAME
REATATAEIRE - W0 R AR 3685
}—E’—wnu °

/\\\

EBABH N ESENIREETEN45%
(ZZE—UF : 45%) Bl S =R M EER
4% (—E—U0F : 22%) 5t E 2 264
HWAFERET FEHEDIRBERAITE
EHOEREMFEMN Y HEEETIEA -
WiEA3%(ZZE—MMF : 3%) FHERX
Ho%3% (ZF—MF:3%) FHER
ENHENRARI0FFEEEBEREEH LT
RBBEEITERBIIHERE -

TP SEEHEREE B EARERERH

R Wi EIR BN WS HIAREI TS o
EFEE

BEEFEBERREAEMAFERILABRER
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EZREELEMNMEHRE TR BENGE
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14. Intangible Assets (Continued)

d) Customer list (Continued)

The fair value of the customer list at the date of business combination
was measured using the excess earnings method under the income
approach. This calculation is based on the present value of the
incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the customer list
and a discount rate of 21%. The annual cash flow is calculated
by reference to the latest applicable annual revenue from existing
customers and has been extrapolated using an average 14% growth
rate. The average 14% growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth and management forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. At the date of the
business combination, the fair value of the customer list amounted to
RMB39,502,000.

e) Technical know-how acquired and internally developed technical
know-how
Technical know-how acquired and internally developed technical know-
how represented development cost of recombinant human thymosin
al, which has a finite useful life and is determined with reference to
the estimated future revenue from the recombinant human thymosin
al. The amortisation will start when the Group obtains production
license and generates revenue from the marketing of recombinant
human thymosin a1. The management is of the view that the future
economic benefits that can be derived from the technical know-how
beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

The recoverable amount of technical know-how acquired and internally
developed technical know-how is determined based on value in use
calculations. This calculation use cash flow projections based on
financial budget approved by the executive directors covering 10-year
period. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 17% .

In December 2015, the Group’s management was committed to
a preliminary negotiation with a third party regarding the disposal
of 100% equity interest of Jiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”). The technical know-how
acquired and internally developed technical know-how attributable to
Jiangsu Neptunus is classified as a disposal group held for sale (Note
32).

14. B EE (&)

d)

e)

EFRE(#)

REBEHABENEFPBERNTEIIAR
BMEFENRAGE - ZAAETIUEF A
BREEERTERSRERER21% T
RELEREE - FERGRENSEZEHAR
FPRETAEBFE WSt EWF R 14% F
B R RMHELE - 14% FHEBERBER
MERETEEERRERERA B W ARBBHE
BITHE 2 FHIRIERE - REKEHAB
HHEFPEEATEAARK 39,502,000

JC ©

EWENERRMRAMREEERRM

B KRR B A By kA BB 5 B H A Rl
BHEAMR o 1HFRBEKRA - BERENE
AER - BA2ZEEANR o 189K
RBMAREE - RAKEESLERME
MEBHAMIR o 1 WEHELRARGS
HeBEERR 10FREBEEFRMDN
RIRAE B RN o

EWENEERMEANIHESE KM
AU El € R UL ACETE TR BRE B A A
HEH -FERRDERDITESIEZ
TFEHMREENEAmMGAE - BeRE
RIIR(E A 17 % T30 R B E A% -

R_ZT—HF+ A AEBHEEERL
EIHBTEMREBR QA (IEHE
F1)100% a5 = TSR o T
#R)8 T FE MG DAY RS Bl A0 8 K B0 B B Y
BiTA#E S EARBELEEN L EAR (T
32)°
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14.

f)

15.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Selling licences

Selling licences have a finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over 5 years. The useful life of the selling licenses is
determined with reference to the period of validity of the selling
licences.

The fair value of the selling licences at the date of business combination
was measured using a relief from royal approach under the income
approach. The valuation was carried out by Ascent Partners, Valuation
Service Limited an independent qualified professional valuer with
appropriate qualification and experience in the valuation of similar
assets in the relevant industry. The calculation was based on the royalty
rate of 5.1% on sales and discount rate of 19.84%. The annual sales
were projected based on financial budget approved by the executive
directors covering a five-year period and has been extrapolated using
an average 3.19% growth rate. The average 3.19% growth rate is
based on the average 10-year consumer price index of the PRC and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. As at the date of the business combination, the fair value of
the selling licenses were RMB1,007,000.

Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment

The deposit of approximately RMB1,027,000 (2014: approximately
RMB12,507,000) mainly represents deposit to acquire property, plant
and equipment for the production base in Fuzhou. During the year,
additional deposit of RMB510,000 was paid and property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB5,387,000 was transferred and
delivered to the Group and the relevant deposit were reclassified as
property, plant and equipment. Deposit of RMB6,479,000 to acquire
property, plant and equipment for research and development activities
on recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs in Taizhou attributable
to Jiangsu Neptunus was classified as held for sale (Note 32) and
deposit of RMB124,000 was eliminated upon disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 31).
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f)

15.

Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1+—BIEE

BREE (&)

HERFTE

HHE R A E B RE RME A FRIIA B AR
RS FEREIH - SHEFFAIEN A EAFRTY
DEHEFARNERPMETE -

REBEHFABNBEEFTERFLETA
WAERRBRIRBUERT 2 - ZIGEBETIHE
VEAEREEGEMIATELRNBREA
B (EHBYABTEEUEEETHER
B R AEER) ETTEE - RATE UL &R
51% BB EBR KL 19.84% AR AR
o FEMEDNERNITESRIEZRF
BRI E R TE R A 3.19% F g &
KM ©3.19% FHEER IERFEH
FH+FHBEREHLEREERANAY
KFBRABITEZFHRBEER - RE
BENBENEETITERATEARARE
1,007,000 7T ©

BEYX BERRBHNEREE

FZEFHAREN,027,000 TER(ZZE—Y
F Y AR¥12,507,0007T) B ARG
MEEEEMBEYE - BE LR ENIZ
& AFERN ' EXF AR 510,000 7T #
BIMNLE R HI AR 5,387,000 TR © iR
B REEDEE RN ASEE RABIE S
BB EYE  BERRERE - HEARE
6,479,000 LU T &R S T ERATEINETEAR
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16. Deposit for Acquisition of Land
In 2011, the Group applied to the relevant local authorities in relation
to the acquisition of land use right (“Lands Acquisition”) for the new
production base in Lianjiang through an auction.

In 2012, the Group won two bids at the tender by the Bureau of
Land Resources of Lianjiang, Fuzhou City at the consideration of
approximately RMB22,940,000 and RMB13,280,000 respectively. As at
31 December 2014, together with other directly attributable costs, total
amount of RMB38,238,000 was paid for Lands Acquisition.

On 16 March, 2015, land use right certificates of Lianjiang were
obtained. All the deposits for the acquisition of land amounting to RMB
38,238,000 were transferred to prepaid lease payments (Note 13).

17. Subsidiaries

The following list is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015.

16.

17.

BELHRE

R=-F——fF  AEEAEEELHAS
BB E R R E T B A R i Y
L strf FRHE ([ L3RR ) -

RZT—ZF  AEBEERMMETIHE
TERBMMR LB HERKI P
% RED AL AR 22,940,000 7T K&
AR 13,280,000 c RZE—HF+=
A=+—8 &EREMmEEZEBERE 5
TR BT 48 RE A AR5 38,238,000 7T
HIFE o

R-ZE—RAFE=ZA+ A EBEILTH
FERAREE B LA ANRER
& ARM 38,238,000 B =AM EFIE
(BFEE13) »

Ff & > |
WTE2EAR-_Z—HFE+-_A=+—H
NEEMBRAFEE -

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERGLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation shares held and paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries  Principal activity
ERILR B/ BRI KEEH KRR HEAR
NAER EXuE BERGERN  RARRAEE ERER el BE  IEER
Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited B Ll 1T gmex
SR ERRERAR
Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and
Pharmaceutical Company # ZEf AE#30,000,000 7T sales of medicine
Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”)* EERHEEY
BT REREERAR
(Dexme))«
Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 76% - 95%  Production and
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd I B AR 10,000,0007 sales of medicine
("Neptunus Jinxiang")* EERHEEY

BNETERTEREARAT
(TBEER))*
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17. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1t—BIEE

17. B A=) (&)

The following list is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015. UWTE2EAR - ZT—HF+_A=+—H
(Continued) MTEMRBARIRE - (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERRLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation shares held and paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries  Principal activity
EREILR EE /BRI REBH LA WEAR

NRER e BERGERN  RARRARE ERER BB BE  IEER

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 79.6% - 100%  Production and
("Fuzhou Fuyao")* H it 30,000,000 sales of medicine

ENREREERAT HERBEEY
(Mg )«

Jiangsu Neptunus PRC Registered RMB90,000,000 100% 100% - Researchand
Bio-pharmaceutical i it AR#90,000,0007 development of
Company Limited biopharmaceutical
(“Jiangsu Neptunus")* (Notes i, ii, vii) products

TEETENREERAR HEEnBiER
(DIAEE ) * (B, i, vii)

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 79.8% - 100%  Production of
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd (“Neptunus ‘:P it AR#50,000,00070 chemical medicine
Fuyao Lianjiang")* (Note ii) FEL2EY

BIRERE(EI)ERAF
(DEETREET)) * (M3t

Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB31,000,000 76.2% - 100%  Production of
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) # B} AR 31,000,000 chemical medicine
Company Limited EEL2EY
("Neptunus Jinxiang
Lianjiang")* (Note iv)

BEERPERLE(ET)ERAT
(NTeF®I))* (M)

Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods PRC Registered RMB500,000 79.8% - 100%  Dormant
Trading Co., Ltd. F i AR 500,000 gz
(“Lianjiang Neptunus
Foods")* (Note v)

EIGSTRERRE
(FBT8TRA]) (i)

Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - Sales and distribution
Pharmaceutical Company Limited R E i AE10,000,0007C of medicines and
("Neptunus Changjian”)* (Note vi) healthcare products

AIBEREREERD HERAHER
(DEEREL) * (Witvi) RiREm
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17. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

) On 8 June 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity interest in Jiangsu
Neptunus held by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at a consideration of
RMB200,000. Following completion of the equity transaction, Jiangsu
Neptunus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased to RMB10,000,000
through additional capital contribution of RMB9,000,000 by the Company
on the same date.

ii) On 4 November 2011, the board of the directors of the Company
passed a resolution in respect of the “additional capital contribution of
RMB80,000,000 to Jiangsu Neptunus” to increase its registered capital to
RMB90,000,000.

On 12 July 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased
to RMB35,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB25,000,000 was
paid up on 20 July 2012.

On 3 December 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB55,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB20,000,000 was paid up on 5 December 2012.

On 25 April 2013, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB72,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB17,000,000 was paid.

On 24 July 2013, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB90,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB18,000,000 was paid.

iii)  On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid
up during the year 2011. On 17 April 2012, the remaining registered
capital of RMB40,000,000 was paid up.

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000 and
RMB5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus
Jinxiang, respectively. Up to the date of financial statements, the
formalities for the increase of registered capital is still in progress.

17. (B A=) (&)

FYAE

i)

iii)

RZZE——FXANA A2BWEET
BEMBIHTI20% HRE  REAR
#200,0007C ° EEMRIER S © L0
THRABEARAZENB AR - RAGRE
A% I#E T E AR 9,000,000t * A
&8 A A= AR 10,000,000
5T o

R-ZT——E+—AB ARFESE
B E a8 TEINEE AR 80,000,000
L) BB IRER  IENEFMELASE
AE# 90,000,000 T °

R-ZE——FtB+=-H I&#8INF
& &%= AR 35,000,000t © EA
FINE AR NEM 25,000,000t —F——
FELAZ+BINM -

N-E——F+-_A=8 " I&E8EMNT
it & A3 — 12 = A R # 55,000,000
JC - AR EEINE AR AR ¥ 20,000,000 7T
T —F+-_AFEBANN-

R-ZE—=FmA-+AHB  I&HETH
It E AN — 2 N E AR 72,000,000
gL EREEINE AR AR 17,000,000 T E
o

R-ZB—=F+A-+WE I&HETH
I E AN — 25 = AR ¥ 90,000,000
JC - HAPEEINE AR AR 18,000,000 TE,
F o

R-BE——F=A=-+—0 BFXEEs
JLETEK AL+ R & A A AR ¥ 50,000,000
T HPR=—ZT——4% AK% 10,000,000
TEXM RZTE—ZFMA+LAH " #
TEEfE A AR % 40,000,000 TE T ©

RZZE——FNATHB  KRAESE
RESEIREETINFMERNHARE
50,000,000 7T # hn = A R ¥ 112,000,000
7T+ HE i AR % 106,400,000 T A R
5,600,000 TS RIHEERERFEER
EE - BHEMBKHREXBE  WMEINER
DAE#ETT ©
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17. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

iv)

Vi)

vii)

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjing was formed with a registered
capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid up during
the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital of RMB21,000,000
was paid up on 17 April 2012. The remaining registered capital of
RMB18,050,000 and RMB950,000 will be contributed by Neptunus
Jinxiang and Neptunus Fuyao respectively. Up to the date of financial
statements, the formalities for the increase of registered capital is still in
progress.

On 30 May 2011, Lianjiang Neptunus Foods was formed with registered
capital of RMB500,000.

On 4 January 2013, the Company acquired 100% equity interest of
Neptunus Changjian with a registered capital of RMB3,000,000. On 28
January 2013, the registered capital of Neptunus Changjian was increased
to RMB10,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB7,000,000 was paid.

In December 2015, the Group’s management was committed to a
preliminary negotiation with a third party regarding the disposal of 100%
equity interest of Jiangsu Neptunus. The assets and liabilities attributable to
the Jiangsu Neptunus is presented as a disposal group held for sale (Note
32).

These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited
liability companies.

For the year ended 31 D
BE_T-AF+-A=

17. B T ()
M - ()

iv)

V)

Vi)

vii)

R-TB——FEXA-1+TWA BELEE
LA s E AR A AR 50,000,000
T HARBE-_E——F+-A=+—
HiEEE AR 10,000,000 T8 S 58
GNVE AR ANREE 21,000,000 tER T —=
FOA+TEAIN - SBRTAMERARKE
18,050,000 7t & A & # 950,000 7t # 9 51
HETERRETRELE - BEMB®R
KAHE  ENFMEROFEDLEIEF -

R-ZE——FRHA=Z1+H BIEIRR
AL EfEARAB AR 500,0007T °

R-ZE—=ZF—AMNB A27KES
TRigzHBE TMELAABARE
3,000,000t ° R=ZZE—=F—A=+N
A BT REOHAMEABLETARE
10,000,000t EP EIERXARE
7,000,000 TTEfF ©

RIZ-AF+-A AEEERERD
ETEST100%EmEE =T g7
B I#HBEIRLEEERABERIARE
HERHEAR (PHRE32) -

ZERTARBTIREAZELHEREER

o

B4
)
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17. Subsidiaries (Continued) 17. B A& (&)
The following table lists out the information relating to the Group's TRINTBABERFEREZNAEE
subsidiaries which has material non-controlling interest (NCI). The ESWBARINER - TXAHRMEERT
summarised financial information presented below represents the ZEAMNATIMYHEA 2258 -

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Neptunus Fuyao

BERE
2014
—ZT—F
RMB'000
ARETT
NCI percentage SEERER A D 20%
Current assets MEVEE 474,919
Non-current assets FERBEE 344,914
Current liabilities mENBE (367,082)
Non-current liabilities B E=N (24,091)
Net assets BEFE 428,660
Carrying amount of NC| FEPEAR A = ) BRTEE 85,732
Revenue A 527,382
Profit for the year NF R T 57,138
Total comprehensive income WA 57,138
d t DI IR AT 11,428
AT PR R R AR B 5,000
ing activities KEEBMEREN 67,086
(62,594)

sting activities  REEBFARLR

REEEFTAEER (9,523)



18.

19.

Available-For-Sale Investments

18. AIHHERE

Unlisted securities JE TS

- Equity securities in the PRC, at cost ~ —FRBIAMIARANTE 5  HEAANE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held 5% equity interest in J&3II T
FEBBEE YRR BRG] (the “Shenzhen Company”) (2014: 5%)
which is a company incorporated in the PRC. The equity securities do
not have a quoted price in an active market and therefore the fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

For the year ended 31
BE-_T-Af+=-A=+

2014
—E—NF

RMB’000
AR¥EFT

300

R-ZZE—RAF+-_A=+—H AEHHF
BFRITmEEHBEMBEARAR (R
YIRF ) B 5% k(=T —MF : 5%) -
ZAR B —HERPBEAFEREAIZIARN
Ao AN EHEREERT S LI ER
& MEAFEREASETE -

Inventories 19. 78
Raw materials BEH
Work-in-progress TR

P n

Finished goods

2014
—TpE
RMB’000
ARBTT

56,973



19. 7€ (&)
BRARSI Tt ABRZNEFEESE»ITM

19. Inventories (Continued)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and

included in profit or loss is as follows: T
2014
—ZT—JUF
RMB'000
ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERESE 365,485
Write-down of inventories WoREE 4,754
Reversal of write down of inventories — F &A1= (11)
370,228

Notes: i}

) As at 31 December 2015, write-down of inventories was approximately ) RZE-—AFTZA=1-— El WO &
RMB7,618,000 (2014: RMB4,754,000). During the year, obsolete AR T7,618,000c(ZF—MMFE: A
inventories of approximately RMB7,618,000 (2014: RMB4,754,000) were R #4,754,0007T ) ° ¢ A liﬁ EFBEHA
identified and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. R#%7,618,000c(=ZF—MF: ARW

4,754,000n)EE/‘%f‘r’é MR A5 K g

ii)

During the year, obsolete inventories written down previously were sold.
Therefore a reversal of write down of inventories of RMB1,283,000 (2014:

00) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

ii)

7
At ©

FREBMBAONRETEDEL -
I TFEMOR B R 4 A R 1,283,0007T
(ZZ—M4F : AR®11,0007T) RirAE
WERPHER o



20. Trade and Other Receivables

For the year ended 31 D
BE_T-AF+-A=

20. FEUR RN K HL th FE UL SR TR

2014
—E—NFE
Note RMB’'000
b AREFIT
Trade and bills receivables FEUS AR TR K P MR R 1 122,631
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T REREEE (2,353)
120,278
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  JEUR[E K E A &l 7B (i),36(d) 200
Amounts due from related companies  JEURREE A FIFRIA (i),36(d) 6,252
Amount due from the immediate EREBARIFIE
parent company (i),36(d) 2,070
Amount due from the intermediate FEU R &R RIFIE
parent company (i),36(d) =
Other receivables Hith pE s FRIE 2,073
Value-added tax recoverable AU Bl 1 E R 8,332
Loans and receivables B K EW R E 139,205
Prepayment and deposits AN RIBRIZE ‘

Less: Non-current assets

Value-added tax recoverable

All of the trade and other receivables classified as current asse
expected to be recovered within one year.

Note:

B SERBEE
AU EEER

i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-—F AF+-A=+—FILER

20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

a)

ii)

In accordance with the Provisional Regulations of the People’s Republic of
China on Value-Added Tax promulgated on 10 November 2008, starting
from 1 January 2009, the value-added tax payable on the Group’s revenue
can be set off by the value-added tax paid by the Group on the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, the value-added tax paid
by the Group on the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment
is recognised as value-added tax recoverable and will be set off against
the Group's value-added tax payable arisen on future revenue. Value-
added tax recoverable will be classified as current if it would probably
be set off by value-added tax payable related to the revenue incurred in
the next twelve months. Value-added tax recoverable classified as non-
current relates to value-added tax paid by the Group on the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. The directors of the Company expect to
derive revenue to utilize the value-added tax recoverable in the near future
but not in the next twelve months.

Ageing analysis
The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables,

20. FEUR BRI At B IRGRR IR (4R

a)

ii)

RIE2008F 11 B1I0BBHACHEAR
HABUILERE/TIEGIRE - 820094 1
A1ER - REEFBARE S ER ]I
AREEREDSE  BERESEZGH
WEREHE - Bt AEBRBEDE K
BB R iR A8 AT S AN By S E B he 2R B ] B U i
EF - WHEAREE B B FTE £/ R
AR o AT Uk 013818 B AR AT B &
KR12MEAFTEARABBEREMIEER
Fisik - BISRBEANE - BEAERD
ZA WS ER  BAKBEPREBA
AIREDE  BERSEINZEERE
e ARREZEETEHARKKFBREA
B ER 2 WABTRERK T A -

AR D A7
AT AAEEZ BYRR R B E IR %
SHEZ27 2Ry T (EEW AR R B

Trade and bills receivables are due within 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy is set out in note
35(a).

presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the |
respective revenue recognition dates:
2015 2014
—2-51F —z-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Within 3 months 3EAR 134,856 105,398
More than 3 months but BiE3EAEIRI12MEA
less than 12 months 25,443 13,929
Over 12 months @@ 12 @A 2,650 951
162,949 120,278

M ERAR L BN EE - REBRZERLER
HEF 0 B AEHIXA - AERBEEBRERX
R IEE M FE35(a) °
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade receivables directly.

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss

Notes to the Finahcial Sta

B 745

For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_ZT-—RF+-A=

RN At B ULR

RIE (48)

20. IR ERF

At 1 January wn—A—H
Impairment loss recognised B HERRERE
Recovery of impairment loss EIbCREY ¢!
Uncollectible amount written off AN B FRIE M8
At 31 December W+—A=+—8~H

Notes:

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of the Group amounting to
RMB196,000 (2014: RMB376,000) were individually determined to be
impaired and allowance had been made. These individually impaired
receivables were outstanding for over 1 year as at the end of the reporting
period or were due from customers with financial difficulties.

RMB75,000 (2014: RMB19,000) of the trade receivables previously
impaired was recovered during the year. Therefore, the impairment loss
was reversed.

ii)

As at 31 December 2015, a bad debt of RMB21,000 (2014: RMB144,000)
was written off against trade receivables directly as the Group assessed
that the recovery of the amount is remote.

iii)

iv)  The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

b) EWERFKEE
FEW R BB EBIE T A H RS - 1
AEBEEWREZAEHITEERE £
WIERT + EENEUWAR S R EEE -
HEEBEREES
2014
—ZT—OF
Note RMB’000
Mt AREFTT
2,140
(i) 376
(ii) (19)
(iii) (144)
2,353
B 5T
) R-ZE—AF+-A=+—H80 @ A£EH
Féllﬂzﬁm}\ﬁﬁzws 00075(_2 o4
AR#376,0007T) (B - 7

B

%% R R B

iy SEAIBRE
R AU E
i)
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R
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the Financial Statements
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ded 31 December 2015
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

c¢) Trade receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

20. FE U R R R B A FE W =R 0E (7))
O MMBEN KRR
3 41 51 5 S5 8 AR 2 . L A1) B 5B AR T B
WERBHRB AT

2014
—ZE—OF
RMB’000
AREFT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 2 58 BA SR (B
Past due but not impaired @ EEERE
1 to 3 months past due BT =3 EA

Over 3 months past due e EREAE 315 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a si ificant change in credit quality and the balances are still
i y recoverable.

111,607

5,947
2,724

120,278

3 45 780 A SRk (8 Y FE WO TR B % 5 I AT
HIR RSB EFER -

ERHEERENREKEEZZERR
BN AKEEP AR - RIFBEL
% EREMRE ARNEEKFEEAE
B MEKRDREANEHRKD - REA
UL FERIERERE -



21.

22.

Principal Protected Deposit

On 24 September 2014, the Group entered into a principal protected
interest rate linked structured deposit arrangement with the principal
amount of RMB20,000,000 with a bank with maturity period of 6
months and which carried floating rate interest with a maximum of
4.5% per annum.

Interest rates of the structured deposits ranged from 0% to 4.5% per
annum depending on the movement of the USD 2 years swap rate.
Such structured deposit is stated at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2015, no principal protected interest rate linked
structured deposit arrangement was entered into the Group.

Pledged Bank Deposits

The pledged bank deposits are bank deposits pledged to a bank to
secure credit facilities granted to the Group. The pledged bank deposits
represent margin deposits to secure bills and other trade finance
facilities granted to the Group from time to time and are therefore
classified as current assets.

21.

22.

For the year ended 31 D
BE_T-AF+-A=

RABFR
RZZE—MEAAZ+ME - REHE—
MRITEI LA S 2% A AR 20,000,000
L BIHIEAMARNER  REF SR ER
BFEERLIS% MRATFREBETRE
B o

505 4 W T 30 2 ) 5 R O 32 T R 4 94
58 B T 545 0% 5 4.5% W B T 3 o
S5 B ML T AR PR AT B

RZEBE-—RF+A=+—B XEEIT
BRI RATR RGBT R B

CEFRITER
ERRITEFRARAEBR R EEMAE
AT RTHRTER - BEROBITER
EREETHERBERERA MR S MA
FERNRES AN RARDEE -



23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2. RERBEEEY

2014
—E—F

RMB’000
ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand RITERRIRS
Less: Fixed deposit with maturity of R 3ME A ZA S RIER
3 months or more B0 BifE R
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiREMBRRR RFE
consolidated statement of financial ReMERNRE K
position and the consolidated REEZEY

statement of cash flows

In 2015, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.30% to0 3.05%. (2014: 0.35% to 3.05%) per annum.

250,956

(15,372)

235,584

N_ZT—HF  RITFERAMETISEFE
NF0.30% £ 3.05%(=F—P4 : 0.35%
%£3.30%) 2/ °




24. Trade and Other Payables

Notes to the Finahcial Sta

B 75

For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_Z-—AF+A=

24. EASBRFR R EL M FE A FRIR

eI RRIR I FE A5 R
TBYR
HADREN R B A
AT EIEPNCIE ]
ENEBRRARRIEA

Trade and bills payables

Receipts in advance

Other payables and accruals
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries
Amount due to the immediate

parent company

Financial assistance from the REEBEYRRIN
immediate parent company HISE B

Financial liabilities measured L SHR AT ER
at amortised cost SRBE

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the

reporting period, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2014
—ZE—JF

Note RMB’000
ihE=s AREFIT
92,329

5,754

58,844

(i),36(d) 19,449
(i),36(d) 1,159
(ii),36(d) 63,000
240,535

FENER AR EMENRBERR —FAX
NREBBRARIREREE -

RERBERERERADHENERE
KRENEEOER AN e,

Within 3 months 3f@AR

4 to 6 months 4% 61HA
7 to 12 months 7E=1218A
Over 1 year 15 E
Note:

] As at 31 December 2015, the balances are unsect
repayable on demand. b




REf-f=+—[A e

24. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 24, BA BRI HALEA A (&)

Note: (Continued) s ()

i) The amounts of financial assistance of RMB74,500,000 (2014: RMB63,000,000) i) SWAAREAREE74,500,000L(=F
obtained from the immediate parent company, Shenzhen Neptunus Bio- —P4 : AR¥63,000,00070) B EBE
engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”). The amounts were HEESRRAFMEBTAEMIERDER
unsecured, bearing interest at 5.52%-6.72% (2014: 6.6%-7.2%) per NEI(ETEW]) ES - BB ER AER
annum, which is 20% above 1-year benchmark lending rate issued by the e BEREF552%6.72% (=T —MN
People’s Bank of China, and repayable on 31 December 2016 (2014: 31 F:6.6%-7.2%) LHBEARBRITET
December 2015). B —FHEERERS L 20%  WARZT

—RFTZA=+—HA(ZE-—WF: =&
—hFEFZA=+—H)EE-

_ 25. M EERITIRE
25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings B

Effective
interest rate Maturity 2014
BRAE FEA —E-E
Note RMB'000
{oFss ARETT
Short-term bank loan WHRITER
— unsecured — (@) - within 1 year 15,000
(2014:6.72% - 7.2%) —FR
(ZF—mF:
6.72% -7.2%)
—BER (b) 4.85% - 6% within 1 year 100,000
(2014:5.6% - 6%) —&FR
(ZE2—mE:
5.6% —6%)
115,000




25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 15 R I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1t—BIEE

25. [ ESRITIEE (&)

2015 2014
—E-AF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFTT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AR TSI EARR B AT B
repayable: SRITIE -
Within 1 year or on demand A FE A K 100,000 115,000

The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All
of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.

A subsidiary of the Group was subject to the fulfillment of financial and
non-financial covenants, as commonly found in lending arrangements
in interest-bearing bank borrowings. The subsidiary was required to
maintain profitability and certain level of gear ratio.

a)

On 18 March 2014, the Group obtained banking facility of
RMB30,000,000 of which RMB15,000,000 is revolving loan and
RMB15,000,000 is for the issue of bills under 100% pledged cash.
The banking facility period is 18 months from 18 March 2014 to
17 September 2015.

On 26 March 2014, loan agreement was signed to draw the
revolving loan of RMB15,000,000. The loan bears interest ranging
from 6.72% to 7.2% per annum, which is 20% above 1 year
benchmark lending rate issued by the People’s Bank of China,
became repayable on 10 June 2015.

On 23 September 2015, loan agreement was signed to draw a
revolving loan of RMB 10,000,000. The loan was repayable on
19 July 2016 and bears interest ranging from 4.35% to 5.6% per
annum which is above 1 year benchmark leading rate issued by
the People’s Bank of China. The whole amount attributable to
Jiangsu Neptunus was classified as held for sale (Note 32).

RS ERBFEEDEMRGBBERAT 20155 F ¥R 121

M RRITIEEDIRBHEKATIR - AEE
FIBREHUARKEE -

A EE B AR AR YIS RN R
BoOERERRN AR EENERE
Ho HBARARKRARETERAE
e % -

(a)

R-ZE—NE=ZA+/\B - NEFEE
BIR7TRVE AR ¥ 30,000,0007T © H
AR 15,000,000 T AEIRERK -
il A % 15,000,000 7T 2 JA 100% &2
HIFRSBITERE - AERTREN
ReE+N @R BMA=-Z—HW"F=A
+NBE_Z—AFNA+EAR-

R-Z—WNE=A=+/,x8 ' i1 E
FiEARRELA R 15,000,000 7TA)
BERER ZEFTEHSBENT
6.72% % 7.2% ° BILL B A RERTT8
TH—FHEEEFRFESH 20%
BR_ZE—RFENA+HEE-

R-ZE—AFHLA-+=H ' A&E
FEBERMHENIERAERERARE
10,000,0007t ° ERR =T — Gt
AThAEERZSENT435% 2
5.6% BIFIXET B - ZAIESRHREA
REBITEME —F A EEEFRF = o
LE 8 TR RED EAFED
& (M17E32) ©
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

b)

On 18 May 2015 and 22 July 2015, banking facilities
of RMB30,000,000 and RMB100,000,000 in total of
RMB130,000,000 (2014: RMB100,000,000) was obtained, of
which RMB30,000,000 is for the issue of bills under security of
100% pledged deposit.

At 31 December 2015, interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group of RMB100,000,000 (2014: RMB100,000,000) were
secured by mortgages over its buildings and prepaid lease
payments with carrying values of approximately RMB38,124,000
and RMB64,018,000 (2014: approximately RMB39,807,000 and
RMB65,589,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the total banking facilities were utilized
to the extent of RMB103,400,000 (2014: RMB115,000,000) and
the Group has available unutilised banking facilities for the issue
of bills of RMB26,600,000 (2014: RMB15,000,000).

26. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

a)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

25. [ ESR1TIEE (&)

b)

R-ZE—RAFHEA+NBE-_Z—RF
+tA-+-H BEBSRERITREARE
30,000,000 7T 2 A R # 100,000,000 7T
st AR 130,000,0007C (—ZE—Y
£ AR%100,000,0007T) © ERAR
#£30,000,000 7L AR 100% B IFTF IR
BRETHTEE -

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H"
AEBMNHERITERARE
100,000,000 C( A = ZF — M 4F = A
R #100,000,0007T) A HEEED
R4 A K # 38,124,000 T & A R #
64,018,000 C(—ZE—4F : YAR
#: 39,807,000 7T X A R ¥ 65,589,000
) WERZB RBNEERIEER
e

R_E—AF+_A=+—8 " R
BELTEEHA AR 103,400,000
T(ZZE—mM4F - AR¥ 115,000,000
L) RAEBABBTEENRB AR
TRVE B AR 26,600,000 T (==&
—P04 : AR%15,000,0007T) °

26. RS WM BARRRAKFREB

a)

A BARRKR AT IR

2015 2014
—E-AHF —EFE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
PRC EIT H B TS

Provision for the year REZHEME 13,352 8,039

Balance of tax provisions BRI FE BRI
relating to prior years TIAR AR 2,342 2,342
15,694 10,381
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26. Income Tax in the Consolidated of Financial

Position (Continued)

b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year as follows:

v
BT 3%

For the year ended 31 December .
HE-_ZT-AF+-A=t—HIEE

26. R MBI R KB PGB

(&)

b) CHERELEREEENARE
ERERE P IEH N R TR BT HIA

Fair value
change of
non-current
assets
FRBEE Others Total
HAFEESE Hith #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥T T ARBTT
Deferred tax arising from EERIEESRIE
At 1 January 2014 M-ZT—mFE—F—H 21,215 (1,491) 19,724
(Credited)/charged to GtA) /4% B8R
profit or loss (1,048) 26 (1,022)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H
1 January 2015 r—ZE—hHF—AF—H 20,167 (1465 . ‘

(Credited)/charged to

profit or loss

At 31 December 2015

GtA) /B EaRk

R=_F—AF+_A=+—H

(1,069)

18,702




>

<M EE

the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—ZT-AF+-A=-1+—ALFE

26. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (Continued)
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued)

to the Financial Statements

26. &7 & BB ARR R A B FrEH

(&)

b)

Net deferred tax assets recognised BEA4RA B TR 2R FERR Y
on the consolidated statement BT IEEEFE
of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities ERER A BT R R HERE
recognised on the consolidated ~ IRFEFI B E & FE

statement of financial position
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE-—hAF+-A=1t—HR

¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB127,992,000 (2014: RMB122,146,000) available
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward for
five years for PRC EIT purposes. No deferred tax asset has been
recgnised in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability

BHERELERBEEENAE : (B)

2014
—F-mEF

RMB'000
ARETT

(1,465)

20,167

18,702

W R M RHEIE R TE S B
REFRPLERE - AEERNRB AR
BEEA AR 127,992,000 0 (=F
—PO4 : AR¥122,146,0007T) » 7]
FA DASEC 85 2R A% 1) S AT gt AR B 4 AT
BHRAEE AT - BREERRKEF
ME - WMWK BEERERELTR
HEE o

REPORT 2015



27. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent

Company

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extent the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to
the Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-
mentioned shareholder’'s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the
repayment of such shareholder’'s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August
2005 (the "Prospectus”), and (2) each of the independent non-
executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations
of the Company and/or the implementation of its business objectives
as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-
executive directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive
cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 attributable to the entrusted loan was

waived by Neptunus Bio-engineering for both 2014 and 2015.

The carrying amount of the Group’s entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company approximates their fair value.
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27. BB RAREFEER

RZZE——FWNAREH " ARNETEYRA
$ AIERBEHEHBITEEREELARRE
EXN ERERAREE—TERE
iﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁm 000,000 T HY B & B - BRI
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HERARRR-_ZTEZTRF/N\AZ +nE
FIENERER(HREERDOARR
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EREIIEBT %%ﬁ%%%@&&%fﬁ
ERBTSHERBREEN ARG L E
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KRR BILIEMITEFRE () BATE
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28. Deferred Revenue 28. IEE W

Other
SubsidyA  SubsidyB  SubsidyC  SubsidyD  SubsidyE  SubsidyF  SubsidyG  SubsidyH  Subsidyl  Subsidy) subsidy Total
A il fic o) fiE T [ K ol B EtEn Eh
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBO000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTRL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
(Note a) (Note'h) Note ) (Note ) (Note ) (Note | Noteg) Note) (Notei) (Note]
(sl (bl (o (Weo) (W) (M) (Mag (W) (W) ()

(ogt ik
At ey 1014 e S il W 3m W3t T T I 1
Adiions i - - - - - - - - 1 i N
Projects completed R - - - - - 13 - - - - - (1800
At 31 Decemher 2014 RI2-mETZR=r-A
ant 1 iy 2015 kog-TE-f-F 0 W3 w3 - moAM0 B S 8T B
Addtions iE - - - - - - - - - - 684 34
Recssed asheld for s EifpRERLE - - - - - - - - o B g (1354
4431 Decembe 015 A B-TEtoR=1-E 0 W3 W 3w - I 1) - - 9% Ng
Accumulated amortiation it
At ey 204 AB-IE--8 it - B il i !
Relzsed to rfit BAIEERY
orls for e i il - 15 - » - - i - T I T4
Projcts completed BiEE - - - - - (1800 - - - - B 111
At 31 December 2014 RE-RETZA=1-A
and 1 iy 205 §-B-5E-5-8 0 - BW - il oo ¥ om0
Relezsed to rfit BAIEERY
orlos for e ear iR - - 146 - - - - ] - - 7 12
Hintedon e EFABARE
s had - BERNR 05 B8] 55 B
' 0 - - am B
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28. Deferred Revenue (Continued) 28. IERE W & (4E)
2015 2014
—E-HF —aeF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETFTT
Current liabilities mBEE 539 1,641
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,107 14,889
5,646 16,530

Notes: M5

a) In June 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the a) E/\77 T=FRA - RNTR BN B
Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen Bureau of YT BERBEAEEREZEER
Finance to the Company for the acquisition of certain plant and machinery %JFf% ks HRABTFAAFAARKE
for the production of interferon spray. The amount of RMB500,000 was 500,000 7T &4 B - A R# 50,000 7L 2 12
fully recognised as income over the useful life of the related plant and HEARE REWA R ERFRREERR
machinery. WA °

b)  In July 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the by RZZTZT=FtA FIMEERNHE
Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen Bureau RN BB R T A R#500,000 7T
of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research and WE) - BB AARRRERERERT
development of interferon ointment. The subsidy is not required to ERMHME - ABEEIEA TKE  BER
be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the IR B KR BB BE & K B
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is subsequently approved BHERT - LEHEH BEEE TR
and certified by Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and MREEMNBERRITHEE - BRAR
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance upon its completion. Since the Company AIMAERBZIER M MUERR =T
has not yet obtained the approval for the project, the subsidy was not —RER-ZZT-MERERILEMBARA -
recognised as income for 2015 and 2014.

o  In December 2004, a subsidy of RMB2,000,000 was jointly granted by 0 RIZEZEFE+ZA - RYMBERE
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information and the BERAFRITEENMKERERBEFTAR
Shenzhen Development and Reform Bureau as a science and technology # 2,000,000 T B fi# B + {EAEIE R B i
fund to subsidize the acquisition of certain plant and machinery. A %% AT RS TS REEs - R
further subsidy of RMB1,000,000 for the same purpose was granted in TRFLR AEEEGEINGEHAR
July 2005. These subsidies are not required to be repaid and the amount ”%‘1 000,0007T * {EAMHRIMAR ° b5/
of approximately RMB146,000 (2014: RMB155,000) was recognised as BBZAER - MA AR 146,000 T (==
income over the useful life of the related plant and machinery. —Pm4F : AR¥155,0007T) BI2E @BE

Ko e 28 6 AT 52 R EF PR EERR AR U ©
d)  In December 2005, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by the d RZZEZAF+=A FmHEBEET

Shenzhen Bureau of Finance for financing the research and development
of interferon vaginal effervescent tablet. The subsidy is not required only if
the project is subsequently approved and certified by the Shenzhen Bureau
of Science, Technology and Information upon its completion. The subsidy
was not recognised as income for 2015 and 2014 as the project has not
been completed.
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28. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

e) In December 2009, a subsidy of RMB3,000,000 was granted by Shenzhen
Bureau of Science, Technology and Information for financing a project
to carry out the research and development of HI1N1. The subsidy is
not required to be repaid. In 2014, the amount of RMB287,000 was
recognised as income to match with the research and development
expense of HIN1 incurred. In 2015, no amount was recognised as income
as there was no related expense.

f) In June 2010, a subsidy of RMB18,000,000 was granted by the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality pursuant to the preferential
treatments given to biological industry under the policies of the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality for the purpose of supporting the
research and development. The amount of RMB6,943,000 was recognised
as income to match with the research and development expense of
incurred in 2012. The amount of RMB18,000,000 was fully recognised as
income.

g)  In April 2011, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by Science, Industry,
Trade and Information Technology Commission of Shenzhen Municipality
for financing the research and development of ¥EHINTREESZE
. The subsidy is not required to be repaid. The subsidy of RMB360,000
was recognised as income to match with the research and development
expenses incurred during the year 2011. The remaining amount of
RMB40,000 will be recognised when the project is completed.

h) In October 2013, a subsidy of RMB4,010,000 was granted by Jinan
Regional Finance Bureau of Fuzhou City for financing the property, plant
and equipment in relation to new GMP enhancement of production
base in Fuzhou. The subsidy is not required to be repaid. The amount is
recognised to match with the useful life of property, plant and equipment
for the new GMP enhancement. As at 31 December 2015, RMB401,000
(2014: RMB401,000) was recognised.

28. JEEW = (48)
fiEE : ()

e)

f)

9)

h)

RZZTAE+—F  FIIHMREIEM
EE/LZEEgR T AR 3,000,0007TH)
WY ERETHEHININER @A -
ZEBBAMEE - R_BE—NE . ARK
287,000 TH & EC EERARA RIS
HINTFFE RS - RCZ—RE R E
RS - MERBERBRA -

RZTE—ZTFXNA FITARBFR
BEUEMEEXENEERERTARE
18,000,000 7T HY 4 B » 1E R ¥ 90 R i B
RS - ©8 A AR 6,943,000 TEHR
BURANRAR - — - FEA NP
¥ o &% AR 18,000,000 T EBHFER
BUA o

R-ZE——FMAE  BYHREIEMNE
BIlEZEER T ARKA00,000L1EAHED
AR R HINT R SR | © % mMBE
TEE - ARM360,000THMHENID EER
ABWMANRER S ——EHREENH
BN - H TE&BARK 40,000 LA AT E
T8 B A T ARER o

RZE—=F+A BNTEREIER
B AREE4,010,000 THIFE) - EAME
BN A A B B T GMP S FRRE R M 2 -
BEREHENRE - ZEHOFEEE - %
SEERAWA - ABLE ¥ GMP AR )
¥ BELREENEABR - R-Z—H
F+ZA=+—H8  AR¥401,0007T(=
TP ¢ ARKEA01,0007T) R AW A °
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28. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

i)

k)

In November 2013, a subsidy of RMB8,089,000 was granted by the
Administrative  Committee of Taizhou Medical High-tech Industry
Development Zone for financing the research and development of
recombinant human thymosin a 1 for injection and for the industrialization
of infrastructures. The subsidy is not required to be repaid. The remaining
of RMB5,384,000 attributable to Jiangsu Neptunus, was classified as held
for sale.

In July 2014, another subsidy of RMB5,000,000 was granted by the
Science and Technology Department of Jiangsu Province for financing
research and development of recombinant human thymosin « 1 for
injection and for the industrialization of infrastructures. The subsidy is
not required to be repaid. The amount of RMB36,000 was recognized as
income to match with incurred research and development expenses in last
year. The remaining of RMB4,964,000 attributable to Jiangsu Neptunus,
was classified as held for sale.

During the year, the Group obtained several subsidies with a total
amount of approximately RMB684,000 (2014: RMB3,057,000) from
local government authorities for financing the research and development
activities. These subsidies are not required to be repaid. The amount of
RMB673,000 (2014: RMB5,488,000) was recognized as income to match
with research and development expenses incurred during the year. A
subsidy of RMB505,000, which attributable to Jiangsu Neptunus, was
classified as held for sale.

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note
4 and note 28, there were no other forms of government assistance
from which the Group has directly benefited.
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28. JEEW 3 (48)
fia : ()

i)

RZT—=ZF+—F TEMNBESHE
MEXHEREEZESR TARK
8,089,000 JTLHY BN © 1E A EETFAEAAR
BRAK o 1 BB FIE L BRI E » %
HHEFEE - IHESIEGEFBARE
5,384,000 LE DB AFIEHE -

RZZE—NFE+LA B—EHTIEHERHT
BT AR 5,000,000 B - 1A
S AESA AR o 1 EFMEZELEE
MEENEE ZEDEREE ARE
36,000 TEEERAWA » UEEEREF
NEANPHEFMS - TEHETEETIBA
R# 4,964,000 TE DB AFIEHE -

RAFE  REBNZEE BT PR
BHRBEHARKEE84,0007T (- — M4 :
AR 3,057,00070) K ZIBME) - 1EAAE
BTSN METE c ZEMBBAE
2o ARM673,000(ZE—HF : AR
5,488,000 7T ) A & FE B ERER A YA LA
BRAEFREEMNMERS - IHSTTREMN
B AR® 505,000 LE DA IELE -

BEERR - KM 4 R w28 Bt #9 % B
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29. Share Capital

Note
BizE
Registered, issued and fully paid: i BBETRERRK -
Domestic shares of RMBO.10 each BREBEARE010T
RMER (i)
H shares of RMB0.10 each SREEARE0.10T
FIH % (ii)

R DR
w—A—Ak+=ZA=1+—-H

Registered, issued and fully paid:
At 1 January and at 31 December

The owners Qf domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive
di ide declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
neetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H

en issued and listed on the Growth Enterprises
“hange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September

29. B

2014 2014
Number
of shares
—T-mF
RIEE “E-mF
‘000 RMB'000
T ARETT

1,252,000 125,200

426,000 42,600

1,678,000 167,800

1,678,000 167,800

NEBRMHBROEE ABEER TR SRS
BRE - TEERARRERE LAFRIR—
R ENERRHBRHEARRBTEES
BRIZHER

B aE -
) RNERRBIARMEAEFRZ S LW

i) HREB-ZETEAFNARARETINE
BMARZMARAFRIFER LT
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30. Reserves 30. f#1@
a) The Group a) AKEH
The Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and AEBRAFERBTFENFRESER
prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in gE) DR EEREEPHRAZR -
equity.
b) The Company b) ZA&AQF
Statutory
Share reserve Accumulated
premium fund losses Total
BEE EERAE RitE#E e

9}

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTRT ARBTE ARETT

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mE—A—A 554,844 3330  (119,214) 438,960
Profit for the year and REFE R

total comprehensive EAFEEEAE

income for the year W estaEa - - 7,230 7,230
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-—MF+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2015 ;k=—ZF—hF—H—H 554,844 3,330 (111,984) 446,190
Loss for the year and REEEE

total comprehensive EAFEEEAE

income for the year Was 42 %E = =

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A=+—H 554,844 31330
Under the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Company’s BIERBERER
articles of association, the Company has to make provision to the b D N /N1
statutory reserve fund from its net profit after tax but before dividend HIED B % Fi 1%
distribution.

BARS

Share premium
Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in exc
their par value less share issue expenses. ol
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30. Reserves (Continued)

d) Capital reserve
Capital reserve comprises (i) the difference between the total amount
of fair value of shares issued to the immediate company and a fellow
subsidiary of the company and the amount of the net assets value
acquired during the acquisition of Neptunus Fuyao, (i) the difference
between the total amount of consideration paid to the immediate
parent company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company and the
amount of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition of
Neptunus Changjian, and (iii) the difference between the total amount
of consideration paid from immediate parent company and a subsidiary
of the company and the amount of the net assets value disposed
during disposal of Neptunus Nano.

e) Statutory Reserve Fund
The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of the
Company's issued share capital. Any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or
for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance
is not less than 20% of the issued share capital after such capitalisation.

f)  Distributability of Reserves
At 31 December 2015, the Company had no distributable reserves,
while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and regulations,
amounted to approximately RMB136,996,000 (2014: approximately
RMB111,984,000).

g) Capital Management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.
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30. fiéfR (F8)

d)

e)

f)

)]

BB
BRRERE(ONARTEBATI R —HH
RIB AR ETHRMO A T EEERELR
BEITRENCWBEEFECHNEE
RiEZRNTAAGEBEARIR—HERE
&R AR EAEEWES T REMK
BEEFENSHE I MNERE - RGHAR
RIEBE AR RARR—MWEARE R
REAFERHESTARREILEEEF
B2 MR ©

EELE
ARBAZLEERETBELEZM R
%%ﬁﬂo DEEERERNE  BEZRE
BREBEINARBTZBITRAN50% 5
b o RARAEEE R EMEBRINEK < 0&
ERABRAAARNBEER  HEXLELAK
o ESBEATPORETEBERCEDN
EETRA20% °

B 2 AR
RZZE—RAF+_A=+—8 " ' AQa¥
EOHIIREE  MRA AR A8ER8
BRBERETRARNGTE  HEFEBEA
HARME 136,996,000 (—F—M4F : 4
AR 111,984,0007T) °

AAER
AREERERA AR ARRARE A
EE 1T R AR B R

BEREMMAREEFRMNE - TER
A e R K P 8 EE o K IR TS TE B R A I
RAESRE -

AEEBEGELREHRGSREERENE
B UESRSRREOR(TEERSEE
IKFERR) R EANAONIHROES K
REFENFE  AERBLERRNE S Y
BAREBIELAE -
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30. f# R (&)

Capital Management (Continued) g9) EXREE(H)
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted AREBIRFEGELHEE R Ry A
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined ERHEREE HMUME  AEEEE
as total debt (which includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, FEBATERBER (BREFERTEE -
entrusted loans from the immediate parent company and financial HESRAZAEFILEBR R ANTE
assistance from immediate parent company) plus unaccrued proposed BB MIEEA RO RRERE S REEE
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all BY) - KFBEERBDIEET B KK IR IE
components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends plus adjusted EHBOIRRES MK AR EFHE -
net debt.
During 2015, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2014, RZE—FF AEERDNERRE_-F
was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In order to —UEAER - AEFEFAEBBELEER30%
maintain the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 270% 2@ REREEBRELE K
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise EEAESHERN TFTRENEE ST -
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratio at BOTRG  REREREEAN - EHFTH
31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows: EEMmESLEEENRLEE - R _F
—hERZZE-HFET_A=+—HHNE
REELEQT -
2015 2014
—E-AE —E—FE
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
gz AR¥T T ARETTT
Total borrowings [Ep-get
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 25 100,000 115,000
Entrusted loans from the BEEBEEAREREN
immediate parent company 27 9,000 9,000
Financial assistance from the HESARUEER
immediate parent company 24(ii) 74,500 63,000
183,500 187,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRReFED 23 (282,494) (235,584)
Adjusted net surplus AR FRE (98,994) (48,584)
Total equity PR 631,922 600,051
Gearing ratio BERBELX N/A N/A
TER TEA
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30. Reserves (Continued)

)

31.

Capital Management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group
was nil. Except for a subsidiary of the Group which is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements under lending arrangements
in interest-bearing bank borrowing as disclosed in note 25, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 30 December 2015, the Group entered into an equity agreement
with the immediate parent company, Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-
engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”) for the disposal
of 100% equity interest of Taizhou Neptunus Nano Bio-medical
Technology Company Limited (“Neptunus Nano”), which carried
out research and development of activities for bio-pharmaceutical
products and the industrialization of in-vitro diagnostic reagents for the
consideration of RMB1,000,000. The disposal was completed on 31
December 2015.

30. f#&f& (1)

9)

31.

BEAREE (F)
RZE—AFR-F—NF+_A=+—
H AEEMNERABBELERAT - AL
ENMHEARRERLH TAEZINRER
FRE BBR BN (GRAnBI s 25 AT ER ) AR
RIS H B R B R RS B 82 A0
KB ZHTE BBR ]

HE—EM B AT
RZE—RE+-_A=1+H AEEEH
BEATRITEITEMIRERNDAEARA
AETEM DT L BREERNEG TR
KEYBESREFRAR (DEEMK] - Z
NAFERFEMHEER REIZEHH
BIEZ(C O EIEE)) 2 100% A4 K A&
i - REAARE 1,000,0007T - HEE
R_T—RE+-A=+—H=K -




31. Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued)

Details of the disposal of a subsidiary are as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost

HAEEFECEERBENDIN

For the year ended 31 D
BE_T-AF+-A=

31. LE—FEHB QR (&)
i — R B AR BRI T ;

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment (note 14)

Deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (note 15)

Value added tax recoverable

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Net liabilities disposal of

Consideration received

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary recognised

in capital reserve

Satisfied by:

Settlement of inter — companies balance

RBEE
FEUS BR 3R e LAt FE W IR
Ao RIRTTHES

FRBEE

WE - BB KR (1 14)

RBEWE BERRBIEZES
(PM¥&E15)

AU B ERE

REBAE
R 1) BR R B EL A B A IR

FRE

SWRKE

EREARFRBARERLZ
HE—FME ARz e

BRI
RAZFESEE
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31. Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued) 31.

An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the disposal of subsidiaries are as follows:

HE B QR (&)
EMHENBEAANRS RASSEN
FAFEOAFMT -

Cash consideration ReRE
Cash and bank balance disposed of BHERS RIRITAR
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FHEEE—BEWBEARNRE R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReSEYRRLFE
32. Assets and Liabilities of Disposal Group 32.

Classified as Held for Sale

In December 2015, the Group’s management negotiated with a third
party (“Purchaser”) for the disposal of 100% equity interest of Jiangsu
Neptunus. The assets and liabilities attributable to the Jiangsu Neptunus
is classified as a disposal group held for sale. The sale was completed in
January 2016.

On 19 January 2016, the Company and the Purchaser entered into
ransfer Agreement pursuant to which the Company has
greed to sell and the Purchaser to purchase the entire
Jiangsu Neptunus. The directors of the Company
value less costs to sell will be higher than that
Ig amount of the related assets and liabilities.
1ent loss was recognised on reclassification of the
‘held for sale nor as at 31 December 2015.

DEBFELENLEARE
ERERE

R-B-—HF+=A AEEERERD
ETHBE100% BB =07 (B i
B OTHS TR AERAESRARE
HEEHEER - BEER T AF—
B

RZE—RE—-AtTNLA ARARER
FIMIRBEE G B ARRBKRME
AELERETREBEIHELINE
Ptk e AAREERY  RTEREEK
AEEREHREERABENREE - B
e REFSDBREERABEAREHER
BRER-_ZE-—AF+-_A=+—H A&
HERRBERR -
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32. Assets and Liabilities of Disposal Group 2. KEHENEHEARIEERE
Classified as Held for Sale (Continued) & (&)
At 31 December 2015, the disposal group comprised the following R-F—RhFE+=-A=1+—8  HE&EAH
assets and liabilities: PREOITEERBAE
2015
—ZE-hHF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) M - BB K (i 12) 53,959
Intangible assets (note 14) mEE (MiE14) 27,181
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant BEME  BELREIES
and equipment (note 15) (M#5E15) 6,479
Value-added tax recoverable AT U L (ERR 7,573
Inventories rE 122
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT B 3 R L At P LKL IE 2,354
Cash and bank balances ] e MIRTTEERR 107
Total Assets of the disposal group PEABFHENHEARNZEE
classified as held for sale 97,775
Trade and other payables JRE AT 8% 35 e EL At JE A< I8 2,822
Interest bearing bank borrowings (note 25@)) L ERITHEE (7 25()) 10,000
Deferred revenue EE Yz 10,348
Amounts due to group entities JERT R BB §8 2 FUE 18,617
Total Liabilities of disposal group PEABFHENHEARN 2B EHEEE
classified as held for sale 41,787
Less: Amounts due to group entities B BN EEER A (18,617)
Liabilities of disposal group classified PERFEHENHEAR
as held for sale ZEfE 23,170
Net Asset of disposal group classified PERFELHENHEAR
as held for sale REERE 74,605
Cumulative income or expenses included in other comprehensive R WA SR A2 E S
income
There are no cumulative income or expenses included in other WHESELEEMAR N 2T WAKF AR ME
comprehensive income relating to the disposal group. S o
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33. HARERE
MRS AEELEEAKRELE o

33. Contingent Liability

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liability.

34. BRI EMIT A
RBEWK - SESBTANEEENT -

34. Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying amount of each of the categories of financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014
—ZT
RMB’000
AREFTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BiREmRAFE
profit or loss AENEREE
Held for trading HER S A%
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 300
Loans and receivables B M ERIE
Trade receivables and bills receivable JEURBR SR R PR U R 120,278
Financial assets included in FEAE U A
other receivables HEmEE 10,540
Principal protected deposit R 20,000
Pledged deposits BHERFR -
Fixed deposits ERER 15,372
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 235,584
412,074
SHas
REEK AT ENERARE
FERTBRSR R BN R IR 92,329
FTAEAMENRENSRAE
: £ 79,452
= 115,000
63,000
9,000
358,781
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35. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

a)

Polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include fixed deposit, principal
protected deposits, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, entrusted loans from the immediate parent
company and financial assistance from the immediate parent company.
The Group have exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk arising from financial instruments. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

i) Inrespect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise risk,
the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and condition
are performed on each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.
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35.

a)

Br 15 R I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1t—BIEE

B Rk EIE B R RBUR

AEENTECHIAREEHER R
AEHR - SEARTER R LA
EEY MERITHEE  BURERREM
EMRIE - ENERAREMENRIE B
BEARZAERLREBHARUNBE
B AEEAREFEERR RBETA
e B¥ERKEASETASENHFEE
@ o MIKZFRBOBRET T - EE
EEEMEEZETRR  BERERRAX
REUEE W ©

FERRE

) EERBEANNS —TERAEL
EREGMSIBEBNMBER - K
SECRAREREENES LER
SRMERD(WER) ERRERE
KIERRB B RANBRA TR ZNEK
& o

i) FERERREMCEYRENS @ &
BERR  BEEEFTAEERR X
FEEZEREERR FHASEE
EEPHP BRI RERNEE T
EHETT - ZEFAETPREPBE
PR BR R B AR ) B SRAR 8 & B TR 8
ReeH  AEEREPHBEREHINE
HFr2BrRERE - AKEYXEFL
HeMEERREHM - BRBEA
REZHHL 0 HAEE -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

a)

b)

Polices (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

i) In respect of trade receivables, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risk of the industry and location in
which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk for which individual trade or other
receivable’s balance exceeds 10% of the total trade and other
receivables.

Further quantitative analysis in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 20.

iv)  Deposits with financial institutions
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established credit rating
or other criteria. Given the counterparties’ high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company’s board approval. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquid fund. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities RMB26,600,000 for the issue of bills of
(2014: RMB15,000,000) details of which are disclosed in note 25.

35.

a)

b)

sEREE R BRREBER (&)

EERK (&)

i) FEMERME @ AEBERENRR
FEXEZRFPFHRBHAEE - BP
MEMTERESMEBRRNAERE
SMHEERBRERTE - K2R
R AEEVESEAEREER
b - RE R I AR B e WOR e A
JRE SR TE ) 4 B4 EB 3R FE UK BR SR R oA
FEURGRIEAB BRI 10% ©

ot PR AT R R % L At JE MR IR S| HE Y
AEEEZERBMETHNE P TEE
DIHTHAMHEE 20 ©

iv) MNEREEBZER
AREEFHIRE N T BB ARIE(SE
ERR  ZZREBCEIZIR
REEEF R EMRE - EREHF
TESZEREENN EEETE
HIERR ST NEEITEE ©

REBESRR

AEEETHEEETERATEATNI
2EBREL  AENRSRESETEDRR
T LUREBERABREFESS R
HERMEBERREETENI A X5EH
FRHNBREATHERRITIRETES
ERRETERER BEUBRREES
RANES  URAETBHEEERS
RMNEFEEERE  UWENEHEES
RBEEF R AEEKRBRTIEEER
RBEEHEERR - R_T—RAF+=
A=+—H A&EBBEXRHFAHEITEEA
R #26,600,000C( —ZF — P4 : ARHE
15,000,000 70 ) LAFRYEEE 1T 5 - FFIBHE
KR 25 o
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. iR EIE B R R B (&)
Polices (Continued)

b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) #REBELEMR(E)
The following liquidity and interest risk tables set out the weighted THRBESD R REKE &Y 2R
average effective interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities HEANEESRE BN INE LY ETER X
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities RHETAGEHE  5ESTa B IEE
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest ABEHRIIBELHE (BIEFBASOF R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on EWMRBEIE  MATEHR  AIRE
current rates at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date HA4E SRR R RS R R ) A B A= B R A A 7
the Group can be required to pay: BNEZER A

014

5
Weighted Morethan  More than Totd
aierage Within - Tyearbut ~ 2yearshut contractugl

effectie  fyearor  lessthan  lessthan  Moethan undscounted  Camying
neestrate ondemand  2yeas  Syeas  Syeas  cshfow  amount

&
nEFS R-FhE BEE BERE MigRe
EHHE OREERER BJNRE EONRE  BERE  REEE BEE

% RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMB'O00
ARBTR ARNTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Vriable rates
-Neptunus Fuyao
- liangsu Neptunus
Entrusted loans from
immediate parent
company *
Interest-bearing financial
assistance from
immediate parent
company
Amount due to the immediate
parent company
Amount due to fellow
subsiciares
Trade and other payables

iTERTEE

&%
-BIRE
-THET

EEOr
Zag

6.0% 101,204 = = - 101264 100,000
1504 15000

REERSRAY
HEHHEY

67,034

ENEEELTA
1,159

ERRAHBARNE

EREMREREIE

* The immediate parent company are expected to waj\z_q._i teres

entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000. 7
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

)

d)

e)

Polices (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings and financial
assistance from the immediate parent company which are at variable
interest rate.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately RMB1,635,000 (2014:
RMB1,570,000).

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group's functional currency is Renminbi as
substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi. The
Group's transactional foreign exchange exposure was insignificant.

No sensitivity analysis of currency risk was prepared as the impact was
insignificant.

Fair values

The fair values of fixed deposit, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts
of principal protected deposit, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
entrusted loans and financial assistance from the immediate parent
company approximate their fair values. The fair value is estimated as
the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

35.

(9]

d)

e)

sEREE R BRREBER (&)

F=mEB
AEBEHEBEANTEHNTHEAR - £
EHEAEFEY S ENMBRTEER
EEBESARMBEEER -

R-Z—RHE+-_F=+—8 HiXE
AN, A 10082 MATEEMmEH
BTE AEEMNRREEFNRRTER
1&E A hn# AR 1,635,000 T (=%
—PuF : AR¥1,570,0007T) °

EHEM

BAT YEAMIMNERRNE MK - &
RAMBEZXBERRA AN AAREG
B BAEENDREERRARE - A5
B HINERBEDN o

HRFETK MU ERHNE KRR
BT

AF(E
EHER R RRESEN  FKER

K B A FEUGR IR ~ BN AR R R H A FE A 3R
EMRAFEEEREERS  RAR%F

TR TAMNRRNEHANTE - REAZF
FRBRITER  EERARETER
BB EDNEEEEEAFERE - 2
FEARRRSRNBEREAUSHTA
BAMSERMBRNE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1+—BIEE

36. Material Related Party Transactions 36. EXBEERRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial AR BRREMM FFRLZ ZHIN 0 K
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related EEMARANRAFENG HEEHET
parties during the year. THIERRZS o
a) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered a) REE-_T—AF+-_A=+—81t
into certain continuing connected transactions. FE  FEEFUETHE@ERS -
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFEANGEBAETETTH
parties during the year: HERRZS
Related party transactions with the immediate parent HEBRBARETHRESRS
company
Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2015 2014
BESER B RHME “E-1f ZE-mF
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
izE ARET T ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Immediate parent Interest for the interest-bearing (i) (v) 4,245 4,409
Company Limited company financial assistance
("Neptunus Bio-Engineering”) EBEAR WS BB ERREHE
AT ENTRROERAR Rental of office
(Nex4m)) BRHAE (i) () 130 260
Disposal of a subsidiary
HE-FEIEAR i) (v 1,000 -
Notes: MsE
i) The interest arose from the interest-bearing financial assistance from ) BEFEREEBERRNH ST
the immediate parent company which was charged at 20% above B RRAEARRITEITH—F
1-year benchmark leading rate issued by the People’s Bank of China. EEEERFE S H20% HE © F1F
Details are disclosed in note 24ii). T EE 24(i) I EE o
i) Neptunus Bio-engineering leased office premises to Neptunus i) BTEVHEHERQAEMETBEEIR
Changjian, the rental of office premises was charged at pre-agreed & WAEMENESN2EMSE
rates with reference to market rates. KIZZR ST 15 E B L RURER o
i)  The group disposed 100% equity interest of Neptunus Nano to i)y AEER=-ZE—AE+=-A=1+—
Neptunus Bio-engineering at a consideration of RMB1,000,000 on AHESTMKI100% RIETEEE
31 December 2015. Details are disclosed in note 31. ¥ RER AR 1,000,000 ° &7

EHBERHIFES ©
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36. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with the intermediate parent

36. ERFAERRS (1)

by AEBERAFEANGERMETHETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

RAERATETHRELIRS

company
Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions
BEFER % RHME
Note
Wizt
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Intermediate Rental of office (iv), (v)
Company Limited parent company ~ HANAE
(“Neptunus Group”)
ATmETEERNERAR HEEAT
(IBE%E])
iv)  Neptunus Group leased office premises to Neptunus Changjian, iv)

the rental of office premises was charged at pre-agreed rates with
reference to market rates.

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

2014
—E-F
RMB'000
AREFTL

BEEEREIRELERAEY
% WMAEMERSIRETISER

RIAKEREERER -

HERNEARETHNEEARS

Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions
BELEE BE REME
Note
Mzt
Fellow subsidiary Purchase of raw materials (vi), (vii)
EEL=NG FEE MR
Purchase of finished goods (vi), (vii)

BESNM
Sales of goods
HERY

Fellow subsidiary Processing income

PRHERT  EEMA
 mEHRS

Purchase of finished goods

(vi), (vii)

(vi), (vii)
(vi), (vii)

(v),(vii)

REPORT 2015

2014
—T-mF
RMB'000
ARBTI
4,083

28,184

51

3,782

281



36. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

b)

Notes to the Financial S

For the year ended 31
HE_ZT

75

—hAFT=HE

36. EXEERRS (1)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related by AEERAFENGHEREFETT
parties during the year: (Continued) TNEARS : (&)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HEAMBAGRETHNEELIRS
(Continued) ()
Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2014
BEFER B RHMHE —Z-mE
Note RMB'000
ik ARETT
Shenzhenv Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (vi), (ix)
Jiankang Technology EERIEIN BERMK S
Development Company Limited Sales of goods (vi),(ix) 22
AT REENEEEARAR HEEM
Shenzhen Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v),(ix) 9
Pharmaceutical Investment BELN=N HEED
Company Limited
AT BERE
ARAT
Anhui Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v),(ix) 47
Pharmaceutical Company BEL NS HEEY
Limited
ZRETRUBEERAT
Jiamusi Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v),(ix)
Pharmaceutical Company EEAIEIN HEEY
Limited
ERITE T EEFRAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Fellow subsidiary Retail of office and factory (vi), (viii)

Pharmaceutical Information
Consulting Company Limited
("Tongai Pharmaceutical”)
(previously known as
“Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing
Company Limited”)
AIETEZREESENA
ﬁﬁELT(f%E%Kﬁ )
(ARG TEEREBRA

EES- NG|

premises

HERRERIBIE
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36. Material Related Party Transactions 36. EXEERRXS (&)
(Continued)
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) ANEENRAFENGHEMEFHETT

parties during the year: (Continued) NEARS : ()

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HEZMBARETHNEESRS

(Continued) (&)

Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2014

HELER & XHHE —T-mF

Note RMB'000
WizE ARETT

Henan Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v), (vii) 2
Pharmaceutical EEA)=YNG HEEM
Company Limited

AEEETRTEERR AT

Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v), (vii) 26
Company Limited BELNNG HEEY

LB TRERRAF

Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v), (vii) -
Company Limited BEL =N HEEM

TARREEERAT

Hubei Neptunus Deming Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v), (vii) -
Pharmaceutical BEL =N HEEM
Company Limited

SEEBEFARAT

Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (v), (vii)

FIZMERE HERM




36. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

Notes to the Financial St

8%
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36. EXEERRS (1)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related by AEERAFENGHEREFETT

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

FJIEBRRZ S « (&)

RERAMBRARAETHNRELIRS

(Continued) (&)

Notes: BT

v)  The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties is v)  GLEBEEFOREERGATITAR
also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. EBMREIERT AR -

vi)  The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties vi)  LEBEEFOREIERGATITAR
is also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. The EENERERI AR - KRARESF
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Feng is also a director of these RFEEMBUERETNES -
related parties.

vi)  The purchases, sales and processing income received were viip BREIOEE - HEREBEATIR
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as —MREBKBIZR - REHME=FH
those charged to and contracted with other third party suppliers and FER B P FTR] L AU K 7T 40 AR R
customers respectively. BV IRFETT -

viii)  Tongai Pharmaceutical leased office premises to the Company. The vii) ERBEEmMAQRALARDDE -

rental of office and factory premises was charged at pre-agreed
rates with reference to market rates. The rental of approximately
RMB268,000 attributable to 2015 and 2014 was waived by Tongai

Pharmaceutical.

MAERBEMELL2EMSES
REREMBENRSERKE - BB
RZZE—RAFR-ZT—MOFEHARKE
268,000 TS HEE BEEDR o
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36. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with related companies

Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions

BESEHE B XeHE

36. ERFAERRS (1)

b)

AEERAFENGRBEETETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical ~ Related company Sales of goods

Company Limited HE A HEEY
e TEREBEERAE Marketing fee
([ERBE]) EHER
Fuzhou Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods
Company Limited BEAT HEEM
BINEGTERBE
EREHBERDNA
Dalian Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods
Company Limited HEAF HEEY
REBTERBERRAA
Hangzhou Nepstar Health Related company Sales of goods

rEyNG HEEBY

Pharmacy Company Limited

MNEEEREEERBR AR

Related company Sales of goods
HERE] HERY

ector of the related party. The income received were
e normal course of business on the same terms as
3 d contracted with other third party customers.

HEEATETHEELSRS
Note 2014
BfsE —T-mE
RMB'000
ARETT
(vii), (ix) 14,577
(ix), (x) 690
(vii), (ix) 28
(vii), (ix) 1
(vii), (ix) 149
(vii), (ix) _

BiaE

ix) HBESAREFRERELNTSEE
FEF - DREIMBATIR —RRER
B REHEME =T EPMIL
B R K AT # AR R B IR BRAETT ©

X))  BHEBERDESERAARENER
REBEIZ - WENMENBERFE -
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36. Material Related Party Transactions 36. EXEERRS (F)
(Continued)
¢  Financing arrangements o mELH
Amounts due to Related interest
related parties expenses
ENRELRSE HERERX

2014 2014

i S
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT

Entrusted loans from HESARETER
the immediate parent company

Interest-bearing financial assistance from BB KT S B £ AR
the immediate parent company

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and interest- BEESAREXERLN BB EHIE
bearing financial assistance from the immediate parent company are R 7 BB 27 12 24(1) R 3B EE o

disclosed in note 27 and 24(ii).
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36. Material Related Party Transactions 36. EXEERRXS (&)
(Continued)
d)  Outstanding balances with related parties d)  ERBEMBEEREH
Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
PEWK BRE 5 RE EREELRE
R+=—A=+—H W+=A=+—-H

2014 2014

—E-UF —ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

Entrusted loans from the EBSRRIZAER

immediate parent company 9,000
Amount due from/to the immediate el BB/ ARZUE
parent company 1,159
Financial assistance from the immediate EB&ATMEEH
parent company 63,000
Amount due from intermediate e R AR
parent company -
Amount due from/to fellow subsidiaries: FEU /e F B A TR
5 R 2 15,674
FITETRER
BRARADF
3,045

WRBERABEERAF

AERREEFRAR

MMEEENTIRERAT
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36. Material Related Party Transactions 36. EXEERRS (F)
(Continued)
d)  Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) d) WMRBEMNBESER(E)
Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H Wt=A=+—-H
EKEES B EREELFRE
2014 2014
T —Z-mEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR

Anhui Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical Z#E TR A EEERE A A
Company Limited - -
Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical WILBTBEBR AR
Company Limited - _
Jiamusi Neptunus Pharmaceutical FEARETEFEERATF
Company Limited - -
Hubei Neptunus Deming WL TERAEERR AT
Pharmaceutical Company Limited - -
Hubei Neptunus Pengtai WILETIREERR AR
Pharmaceutical Company Limited -
200
Amounts due from related companies:  FEULEEE A FIZUE -
Nepstar Pharmaceutical EREHE 6,168
Hangzhou Nepstar Health Pharmacy ~ #I/NELEREEHRE
Company Limited BRRAF 84
6,252
8,522
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and BEE&RQ

financial assistance from the immediate parent company are fER AR R A
disclosed in note 27 and 24(ii). The balances with these related ]

companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on dema
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36. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

e)

f)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
including amounts paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in
note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 8, are as follows:

36. ERFAERRS (1)

e)

Short-term employee benefits 5 R B 18 A
Post-employment benefits REERET

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing

provided in the Report of the Directors.

IZEREAEME
AEETEEREEAESMEBEXN

FTARRAEZWEH(RME7H R

BIRXNTETRSHFHEENSR

(P8 RIE) T -

2014
—E—NF
RMB’000
ARET T

2,841
188

3,029

e EERIEIRA] (RN
5(b)) A

B LA (b) R () HIBRE T R 518 KRR
BRFHAIER ETHRANE 20 B AR
ENFERERS - BIERLETHA
FEREFORBERNESTSIRE -



37. Commitments

a)

b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015
authorised and not provided for in the financial statements were
as follows:

Notes to the Finahcial Sta

B H53
For the year ended 31 D 3
HE_ZT-—AF+A=

37. &
a) UFRZZE—AF+-_A=+—H%
FIRNE RN EEL RN B RRIED
B

2014
—ZE—E
RMB'000
AREFT

Property, plant and equipment M BERRE
Contracted for, but not provided for: & 5T 491K -
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR
Intangible assets B EE
Contracted for, but not provided for: & 5T #9{8 KB -

EEEM (kEe)

Technical know-how,
net of deposits

YRRV EE

Acquisition of intangible asset

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

15,093

2,992
7,000

9,992

25,085

b) RZT—AFt:
AT HUE AR i L
FERMT

Within 1 year R—FK

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA

The Group as lessee leases office premises unde
arrangements. Leases for the office premis

rental.
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38. Company level statement of financial position

38. A AIBHEM B AR T

Note
FaE

2014
—E—OF
RMB’000
AREFTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets
Value-added tax recoverable

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company
Deferred revenue
Current taxation

FRBEE

LE I e e
B A REIRE
AHHERE
RIEIREE
AU EEER

RBEE
R LA R e LAt B WK IR
RelReEED

REAE
A BR AR S EL A B A 5RIR
HEBBRRNERER

EIE W Es
BIEATIR

10,674
546,520
300

969

474

558,937

94,873
2,284

97,157
29,153
9,000
155

2,342

(40,650)
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38. Company level statement of financial position 38. X RIEBEMY B SRR R (&)
(Continued)

2014
—TmF
Note RMB’'000
bz ARETT
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 56,507
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERABDEMRE
LIABILITIES 615,444
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred revenue PFEIEI S 1,454
(1,454)
NET ASSETS BEE 613,990
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AAQTEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital A& A 30 167,800
Reserves i 446,190
TOTAL EQUITY e
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 g
March 2016. BRI
Zhang Feng Xu Yan He
iR TREF
Director Director

B=%
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39.

40.

41.

a)

Immediate, Intermediate and Ultimate
Controlling Parent Company

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the
intermediate and ultimate controlling parent company of the Group to
be Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Neptunus
Group Company Limited and Shenzhen Yinhetong Investment
Company Limited respectively, which are incorporated in the PRC. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Zhang Si Man. Shenzhen Neptunus
Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. produces consolidated financial statements
available for public use.

immediate,

Subsequent Events

On 19 January 2016, the Company (as the vendor) and a purchaser
entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement (“Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity
interest in Jiangsu Neptunus (including settlement of amount due to
group entities), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at
a consideration of RMB57,800,000. The disposal of a subsidiary was
completed in January 2016.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

39.

40.

41.

a)

BEE  PERKZRERE AT

RZB-AF+-A=+—H EFRAK
AEEHE  PHEERKRKZERERR]DH
RAINTEEEDITRRERHARIA - R
YT BEEBERNB R QR KR HRA
BREARAR - GRPBEEMAL - %
RAMREERTRRERELE - RYIW
BEEMIERNDERRABRES MG
WRIEDNBAE -

HR =18

RZZE—RNF—A+NIA  ARRI(EAE
A EEFFIREEEGE ((HE]) &
bt ARFEBBRERBEERE S B K
HREBREAQARNEEZ2EWE QAL
BEMEIRE(RELERNEEERX
1) KEAARM57,800,0007T  HEH
BARIER-ZZ—R"E— A% -

BRETHAR KA

fhEt R REE RN EERR

AT AR 2RMERB EOTRERE
MARREMEERRHEHETEER
% BRBRTEEASBRARY BEF
EHAEREEREEEHEABRENE
REB - 5T -
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41. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

i)

ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments and deposits for acquisition of land and
property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments and deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipments as at the end of the reporting period
are approximately RMB133,742,000, RMB101,931,000 and
RMB1,027,000 respectively.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be charged during the year. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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4. BEES

Br 15 iR I
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_Z-—AF+_A=T—HIFE

sHdET & E ()

a) MENWTRERZRHEZRER(F)

i)

ii)

WFE - BERRKERANHEENED
BEUARKELH - Y5 BERK
ErE
BEMAIKESEEHE A FEREE
BRAMERABEORRE - E£MHaT
FAEER - HBETARRESR
fﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ FERAMITINE AT
[RBTG5 AN B RERZE
%%EZH&{EZHHU%W% A=
BH U AKEFRE E A EH B A
o AEENAMBRAENER Y]
WESBESENGEE - BEAEM
A 37 75 B9 R AR DA R IR 4% 28 B AR |
t 8 o fiEt e %EE’J“@?—J %Tﬁ?sﬁ'\]
FEHEEEASEANTE  WrlEER
Efﬁx/ﬁﬂF'aﬁaﬂm%ﬁ%ﬁ'\]ﬂ@?ﬁ?&iﬁ?ﬂp
BIEFHIRARERL - RIMEER
ME - BB REE  BANEEFIER
HE - WE T Re RKEDE -
BERSEBEBNEEIHIHRARE
133,742,0007T *+ AR% 101,931,000
TR AR® 1,027,000 7T °

HWE - BERIEITE

WE - BERREBEEEBEMGEER
REENRBFTAIERAFHRRERE
ENE - HEENERRSHRAK
B ERXER  ASEEHNHE
ER AT AR FHETZ - AE
REMUAREHEUEENBER
BRAEE  WEERBRARMEHRE
B - ARG BERES  REH
R ERSERE -
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41.

a)

Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

Impairment of receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of customers and other debtors
to make the required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the aging of the receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience, If the financial condition
of the customers and debtors were to deteriorate, actual
impairment losses would be higher than estimated. The carrying
amount as at the end of the reporting period is approximately
RMB162,949,000.

Write-down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in the estimation.

Capitalised development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. In the development phase of an internal
project, the Group has to exercise judgement to identify an
intangible asset and demonstrate that the asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. To demonstrate how an
intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,
the Group assesses the future economic benefits to be received
from the asset. If the asset will generate economic benefits only in
combination with other assets, the Group applies the concept of
cash-generating units.

158 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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a)

EEETEET R E (&)

fhEFE T REE E E A EZRIF ()

iii)

iv)

v)

FEW LR Bl
AEEAGTEREFPREMREA
RBEBN SRIA T 3 4 2 RIZFRBEE
1B - ARG DIRBEKBORE B
Bk - REBEANGEERESL HHDEK
FHE - MEPIREANM BN E
2 AR ARERBINRERE
ERPEFENRABEONRARKE
162,949,000 7T °

AEEEETREFTENMR - 1tE
M D2 EFERED T - REARK
EmMEHERBRLERENERLH
Erm e o RIRUER - WFEMNE
HEXREEREGEFATR2EFEE " A
AEEEWBRFENEE - HERNTR
AREELEE BERERBEENER
ARG AMAR - Mt At ez

ok By sER 42 L
BEolgex &8 -

BXEHEH

MEMABEEMELENMRS  RE
RIATBERTHBIEERRTIANR
IE o AEBREE R ENELEE UM
FERAKMEERM LT ARAE
BRERZBEE YAk NEARE
EHRBEE  ZREEMAELERK
RENDS - AENEREATKE R
HE > ARNFERFRER A ES
e RABEBRAEER  AEEA
SRR A B MR A - BAAKR
BEBBUREERREENTD - B
B BBV & B R AR T B AR AR R R AR
BN NEEFEZEEESER
BRI BN - MRZIAEEERE
HHMEE OB T TELELHE
Mg AIRNEEREARSELBMN
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41. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

Vi)

Vii)

viii)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 1(j)ii). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rate, and other assumptions underlying
the value in use calculations. The carrying amount as at the end of
reporting period is approximately RMB119,469,000.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group reassesses the
useful life of the intangible assets and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the
future period.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilized, management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period are approximately RMB1,435,000 and
RMB 19,098,000 respectively.
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4. EREFHEE R HE (&)

a) MHENTIRERZNEZERR(E)
vi) BEEEHE

BB 1)) TR - K
CSEEFHERNEEEGREETA
Ao IRKMIR e EEBMN S EIZE
FREBENEEIET - &ZiTELES
CERABEEURREBEEMED
At R RER - BREBIATRRIRZ - AR
HIBFAEEFEEABANSEEM
B& - 2FRPLAEEINEFERENAA
R ¥ 119,469,000 7T °

vii) B E#

BV EEREREEEREMF A E
RERFREE - BEEAFERY
LREBEBNG AKREEGLELE
EMAEAFR - WEAFHENR
RIGEHFEH - BRAZRAEZEZSF
B MZRGEFRRRBEK T
B o

viii) AT
EBEMERBBESIRHEETRINE
RRBEEBELNAE - AEEE
BT ER SIS EIN AT
BEE NEESHRAERSOHB
BRIV E HIRT Al - DART R B RS E A
WFATEEE - KBRS ER RN
TREEARAR/BELERIBEE - B
R L IRE TR B A E R IRTE B SR fE
R A AT A R S R A RIS I e B
TEHR  ERENFTETEHER -
4R SR AR ] B 2R 1 AR R Ve ) J2 LA R
EERBEAE  ASBEIRBINE
EHBBEE - RBEHR BEEFR
BEEMELCHEAENREAED
Bl 49 & A R # 1,435,000 7 & A R #&
19,098,000 7T °
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41. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
ix) Classification for Jiangsu Neptunus as disposal group held-

for-sale

As detailed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
Jiangsu Neptunus to be classified as held-for-sale as at 31
December 2015 despite the disposal was completed after the
end of the reporting period on 29 January 2016. In making this
judgment, the directors considered the detailed conditions set
out in HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and satisfied
(i.e. Jiangsu Neptunus is available for immediate sales and highly
probable to be sold within 1 year).

b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and liabilities, the
Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future events
on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. These
estimates involve assumptions about such items as cash flows and
discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and expectations of future events and are
reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations of
future events, judgements are also made during the process of applying

the Group's accounting policies.

4. EREFHAR R E (&)

a)

b)

EETNTFREREZNEERIR (F)

ix) FIBHEEREBIFELENHEH
)
WANGR A I E R 32 Pl - BE
HEI#HSETRMEHARE S —N
F-AZHNBHFETK  BEXREE
ERZZE—RAF+ZA=+—8#1T
BETHOBEARELHE - TIFHRIE
HlEner  ESERAEMTEBUER
HEABESRIFELEERBEE (B
HEIEG T AR R A AR &
RMAR K& 82 501 #5 2R 1 F A TEAK

%o)

=

R EBEH RENETEH

EEEREMEENBENKRESER K
KEPR T EENRREFHR 2R

AZEEENRBENZEFLTRR - &
EHEIERBERMBANRSRELMR
TEZRANBRR AREREBEBENL
BANE R R E M ROTRETHE L A FRR -
I EHIEE - BRE R R EH N RRMMEF
Sy AEERAEHBRBEATEEY
HEf o
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R.BE_E—RHE+-—BA=+—
HIEFEEEMERERERDN

42. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not

Yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December

2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements.

1B5] ~ #a] R KRR ER

2/ 488
S

BEEAUBHREOY  BBTMASE
BHATREBEE-_E—RFE+=-_A=+—
B FE MR EREER] M FTET R -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BERVBEMEENE IR MBI A
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' EAVERELAE 1S KARFAHN
i rzs
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in EEVERELENE N KBEEEBE
Joint Operations? EACCHIEN) wHEE A
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? ESSHERE1R(E HEFTE?
HEN)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BEAGHERSE 6 R TEREHE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? BERGEEREIZH Z2HERE?

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Investment Entities: Applying the

(BETA)
EBSHEE 165

BB ERE 4158

BETAE)
BEAEMBHREEAE 10

B¥ £EME
%2

KREER: A

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception? S BBMBHREE  HKEAERHD
BIZE1N2REEEGT IMER?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

AR 28 5% (IBR]A)
EATBERELEDE10
RREBSSEAE

KREERABE

NG A= i

2858 (FBETA) XERHE R

EANEEES
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 ERM B MEER (BF] BBMBRELE
R~ %) Bl=F——%
Z-T—F
B 2 FER

3t 2
" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. T RZE-NF—A B ZERBH
FREHMER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 2 RIE-RE-A—HZZERBRD

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for TXENAEEBEREANBRFENEEREE
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial HEERE  DRESEEEAMKERMBE]RE
statements’ is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=t—-HILEE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—T—UF =% —ER-=F 25
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®TE ARETT ARETT

RESULTS E35
REVENUE WA 648,268 611,666 530,458 474,652
Cost of sales SHEMR AR (371,534) (360,504) (334,960) (309,811)
Gross profit EF 276,734 251,162 195,498 164,841
Other revenue HAA 10,345 6,051 11,371 9,973
Other net income Hip g A\ F5 77 1,196 625 22,853
Selling and distribution costs HERDHERE (116,682) (101,640) (75,743) (63,772)
Administrative expenses 1TBFX (53,152) (59,039) (48,253) (56,460)
~ Other operati ;» per H &R (45,863) (46,478) (36,305) (20,853)
EER(B518) 71,459 51,252 47,193 56,582
MBER (11,078) (7,684) (6,590) (14,084)
BREATET, (EE) 60,381 43,568 40,603 42,498
i (15,934) 3,430 (4,525) (13,045)
44,447 46,998 36,078 29,453
33,174 35,855 24,298 21,686

11,143 11,780 7,767

46,998 36,078 29,453

REPORT 2015



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t—-HLEFE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E—UF —E-=F —T——F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFIT ARBETFIT AREETT AREET T
1,011,664 914,109 870,736 761,317
(411,613) (353,505) (352,382) (275,041)

600,051 560,604 518,354

486,276




PROPERTY IN PRC

Location
b 3E

Kuiqgi Village,
Gushan Town,

Jin"an District
Fuzhou City

Fujian Province

The PRC
PEIEZEEMT
B R E L SR

Intended use

Rz

Industrial

T

RS EE 3

Site area
TEE

(sq.m)
(FFK)

166,109.5

166,109.5

Gross
floor area
BEEE
(sq.m)
(FFK)

58,434.74

58,434.74

Group’s
interest
FEiaES
(%)
ADk

100

100
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